
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 20, 2015 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the October 6, 2015 Board 
of City Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
F. BIDS: 

1. Consider concurrence with DOT’s recommendation to award low 
bid for I-94 Business Loop and Memorial Highway Sign 
Improvements. (Resolution No. 6) 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider approval of monthly bills. 
2. Consider confirmation of special assessments for Street 

Improvement District #176. 
3. Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the 

North Dakota Department of Transportation, Traffic Safety Office. 
4. Consider for approval Replat of Lot 7, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial 

Park 2nd Addition 
5. Consider for approval replat of Fischer’s 1st Addition 
6. Consider for approval the special assessments for Weed Cutting of 

2015, Sidewalks of 2015 and, Health and Safety of 2015. 
7. Consider for approval the assessment of Delinquent Utility Billing 

Accounts for 2015. 
8. Consider approval of site authorization for Horse Race ND at 

Moscow Bar from November 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 
9. Consider for approval the advertisement for bids of a new fire 

engine. 
10. Consider approval of the following Special Sunday openings: 

i. Mandan Moose #425 – Nov. 1, 2015 through Feb. 21, 2016 
ii. Lukes Bar LLC dba Silver Dollar Bar – Oct. 25, 2015 through 

December 27, 2015. 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

October 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

 
H. OLD BUSINESS: 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Update Mandan Park District 
2. Consider 3-way agreement for installation of water and sewer for 

Lakewood 9th Addition. 
3. Consider 3-way agreement for installation of water and sewer for 

Meadowlands Addition. 
4. Consider amendments to Chapters 101 and 105 of City Code 
5. Consider Growth Fund Committee recommendations: 

i. Application for Flex PACE interest buy-down for BBCS 
Properties, LLC (Prairie Rose Dentists) 

ii. Application for a Storefront Improvement at 111 Fifth Avenue 
NE by Bearscat Bakehouse 

iii. Application for the Retail & Restaurant Incentive Program by 
Bearscat Bakehouse 

6. Consider City of Mandan designee for working with City of 
Bismarck on housing action plans. 

7. Consider appointing representative(s) to work with City of Bismarck 
and Burleigh County on agreements related to Combined 
Communications Center. 

8. Update on the Cemetery cleanup and the status of the Grounds 
Maintenance building. 

 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. First consideration of Ordinance 1222 making additions to new city 
code related to snow removal and use of streets. 

2. First consideration of Ordinance 1223 amending Chapters 101 and 
105 of the Mandan Municipal Code. 

3. Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance 1221 
renaming street in Lakewood 8th Addition. 

4. Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance 1204 
adding a section on graffiti to Chapter 16 Nuisances. 

5. Second Consideration of Ordinance 1220 adding prohibition 
against incendiary balloons, sky lanterns and celebration lanterns in 
Chapter 10 Fire Prevention and Protection. 

6. I-94 Business Loop and Memorial Highway Sign Improvements 
Concurrence. 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. November 3, 2015 
2. November 17, 2015 – 4 p.m. Service Awards 
3. December 1, 2015 
 

M. ADJOURN 



Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

October 20, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at 
Mandan City Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of 
citizens throughout the City. Individuals wishing to address the Board are 
encouraged to make arrangements with the Board President or the City 
Administrator prior to the meeting. Comments should be made to the Board and 
not to individuals in the audience and be related to City operations and programs. 
The Board will not hear personal complaints against any person connected with 
the City. If a citizen would like to add a topic to the agenda, arrangements must 
be made in advance with the City Administrator or Board President. The Board 
reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time allowed for public participation. 
The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of October 6, 2015 

Page 1 of 8 

 The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on October 6, 

2015 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.   

Commissioners present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, Braun and Laber.  Department 

Heads present were Finance Director Welch, Police Chief Bullinger, City Attorney 

Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Fire Chief Nardello, Business Development & 

Communications Director Huber, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth, Planner 

Decker, Assessor Shaw, and Building Official Lalim. Absent: Director of Public Works 

Wright. 

 

B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Commissioner Braun moved to approve the 

Agenda. Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous 

approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:  Mayor Van Beek invited anyone interested to 

speak for or against any items on the Agenda to come forward.   

 

Blaine Engelstad came forward and addressed the Consent Agenda Item No. 15.  He said 

that “Patience Subdivision” no longer exists.  It is now called North Prairie Five and was 

platted about four years ago.   

 

A second announcement was made for anyone to come forward to speak on the Agenda.  

Hearing none, this portion of the Public Communications was closed.   

 

D. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider approval of the following minutes from the Board of City Commission 

September 15, 2015 regular meeting.  Commissioner Laber moved to approve the 

minutes as presented. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  The motion received 

unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

F.         BIDS: 

 

G.        CONSENT AGENDA 

1.         Consider confirmation of special assessments for Street Improvement District 

#177, #178, #179, #181, #182, #185, #186, #189, #190, #191, #192, #193 and #195.   

2.         Consider Change Order for Street Improvement District 200 Project 2015-09. 

3.         Consider agreement with NDDOT for design of Twin City Drive and Main Street 

Traffic Signal. 

4.         Consider recommendations for Mandan Architectural Review Commission 

appointments. 

5.         Consider the following reassessments: (i )Jack & Mary Ann Paul; (ii) Craig 

Ostafin.  

6.         Consider approval of Special Sunday Openings for the Mandan Moose #425 on 

October 11, 2015 & October 25, 2015. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of October 6, 2015 

Page 2 of 8 

7.         Consider approval of an assignment and consent agreement for the Storefront 

Improvement Project at 112 Second Ave NW. 

8.         Informational item, Change Order #3 for Downtown Street Improvement District 

#199. 

9.         Consider agreement with NDDOT for design of Highway 6 and 19
th

 St. turn lane 

and signing improvements.  

10.       Consider CPM agreement with NDDOT for Memorial Highway traffic signals. 

11.       Consider for approval lots splits in West Hills Estates First Addition. 

12.       Consider for approval Change Order No. 6-Final to Thirkettle Corporation for 

the Water Meter Improvements Project. 

13.       Consider budget transfer from 2016 Street Department Capital Outlay budget to 

2015 budget. 

14.         Consider a reduction in the structure value for the 2015 year for Otis R. Patton 

Jr. property. 

15.         Acting as Board of Adjustment, consider request to grant a variance to allow a 

garage to be located in front of the primary structure on Lot 1, Block 1, Patience 

Subdivision. 

 

Commissioner Tibke said that she would like clarification on Item No. 15, as the location 

being referred to as North Prairie Five.  Planner Decker clarified that it is the original 

subdivision for this parcel.  They updated the alignment of some lots and renamed it 

indicating where the variance would sit on the original parcel within the original 

subdivision.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Commissioner 

Tibke seconded the motion.   Commissioner Laber stated she was pleased to see that the 

MARC Board received more applicants than they had positions open.  She encouraged 

individuals who were not selected at this time to continue to come forward and apply for 

other opportunities to serve on the many Boards available throughout the City.  Roll call 

vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

H.        OLD BUSINESS: 

 

I.          NEW BUSINESS: 

1.         Consider Visitors Committee recommendation for updated visitor signage and 

issuance of a request for proposals.  Business Development & Communications Director 

Huber stated this request comes from the Visitors Committee who met on August 25, 

2015.  Among the items they considered was a request for new visitor signage that would 

provide a welcome and direction to visitors for various attractions and a sense of 

community branding and character.  This request was presented to the Visitor’s 

Committee by the Mandan Tomorrow Leadership, Pride and Image Committee which in 

turn had been tasked to head this project by City and Park District Administration.  The 

Committee studied potential locations in which they came up with 15 recommendations 

as well as sign content suggestions.  The Visitor’s Committee was asked to consider 

supporting the project, which they did in concept, and to support the issuance for the 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of October 6, 2015 

Page 3 of 8 

support of a proposal to identify engineering and signage companies that can assist with 

this project.  The recommendation of the various planning efforts the committee is 

planning on taking was outlined.  A recommended policy of how to achieve the goals that 

will maintain the city’s signage and landscaping and other features at key city entrances 

was reviewed. The policy will include improved signage and beautification efforts to 

direct visitors to activities and landmarks in downtown Mandan. 

 

Commissioner Rohr requested clarification as to whether this would be an addition or 

enhancement to the kiosk at the east end of Main Street?  Director Huber stated the kiosk 

is used to communicate current events that are taking place in the community. This 

signage would be much different since these would be more permanent and wouldn’t be 

changed on a daily basis. They would be smaller and less expensive.  An RFP would be a 

better way to identify the exact cost for this signage.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to issue a request for proposal for Visitor Wayfinding 

signage.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

2.         Consider Bismarck-Mandan Musicians Association request changing the name of 

the Mandan Band Shell to the “Vern Cermak Band Shell”.  Steve Harmon, President of 

the Bismarck Mandan Musicians Association, presented a request to approve the naming 

of the Mandan Band Shell at Dykshoorn Park as “Vern Cermak Band Shell”.   

 

Mayor Van Beek supported the request stating that it is only right that Vern Cermak 

should be honored due to his loyalty to the events held at the Band Shell over the last  

21 years that it has been in existence.   

 

Commissioner Braun moved to change the name from the Mandan Band Shell to the 

“Vern Cermak Band Shell” to recognize the work of keeping it in operation for the past 

21 years and a place he calls home. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call 

vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.         Presentation of Old Red Trail project planning and consider decisions needed as 

part of the NDDOT required CATEX document to move forward with project.  Planning 

& Engineering Director Froseth stated that City staff previously recommended the hiring 

of KLJ earlier this year to help the City plan, design and provide pre-bid services for the 

stretch of Old Red Trail reconstruction between Highland Road and 47
th

 Avenue 

Northwest.  Much of the preliminary estimates have been completed.  A public input 

meeting was held and decisions now have to be made about the project in order to move 

forward with the final design step in order to bid this project next year.  A representative 

from KLJ presented the plans for moving forward via a power point presentation showing 

some of the findings of the project thus far and outlined the issues that are before the 

Commission for consideration tonight. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of October 6, 2015 

Page 4 of 8 

Gabe Schell, an engineer from Kadrmas, Lee & Jackson came forward for the 

presentation.  A summary of the points of the project included: 

 Project Description: Reconstruction Highland Road to 47
th

 Avenue NW 

 Current traffic volumes 

 Project Schedule 

 Purpose of the Project 

 Need for the Project  

 Funding  

 2016-2019 STIP $4,000,000 ($3,200,000 federal funds capped; 

$800,000 City Funds 

 2015 estimated $6,200,000 to $7,000,000 construction cost 

 Description of Alternatives  

 1.  Alternative A (no build) 

 2.  Alternative B (build) 

 Construction phases  

 

A public input meeting was held on August 20, 2015 at Red Trail Elementary School.  

Mailings were sent out and there were three written comments received that are included 

in the packet of information.  The comments from the meeting were mixed. There was 

support for the project but the main concern was the cost and how it would be paid for 

and what are we going to do?  This program was funded through the NDDOT as a $4 

million construction project of which 80% will be paid for by the federal government and 

20% would be through local share.  They won’t fund any more than $3.2 million for their 

share. A life cycle cost analysis of the project was provided for both asphalt and concrete.  

He explained the costs of the two options and broke them down to the costs in respect to 

an annual basis.   

 

In the next portion of the presentation, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth 

discussed some of the issues the City needs to decide on tonight. In part, these questions 

and suggested answers are as follows:  

Q1:  Do you concur with the project concepts proposed? 

A1.  Yes. 

Q2:  Which alternative should proceed with the project? 

A2:  Alternative B-Build alternative 3-lane roadway section. 

Q3:  Which pavement surfacing section should be constructed with this project? 

A3:   Bid both the concrete and asphalt pavement as alternatives. 

Q4:  Which option should be constructed for the 40
th

 Avenue Intersection? 

A4:  Maintain existing access configuration. 

Q5:  Should a new 12-inch water main be constructed with this project? 

A5:  Yes:  Install water main.   

 

Planning & Engineering Director Froseth stated that it has not been determined how the 

assessment district boundary would be created, indicating there are approximately 900 

properties within this area.  If the project only goes to 40
th

 Avenue NW, the average per 

lot assessment would be a little under $1,000.  If the project goes up to 47
th

 Avenue, as 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of October 6, 2015 

Page 5 of 8 

was originally intended, (because everything beyond that $3.2 federal share paid for 

locally), that assessment goes up to about $3,000 per lot on average.  The 

recommendation is to note within the environmental documents that the City would want 

to stop at 40
th

 Avenue Northwest and in a future project, pick up the stretch from 40
th

 

west to 47
th

 in order to keep the special assessments reasonable.   He said the preliminary 

plans will be submitted to NDDOT for their review by next month with final plans after 

they are reviewed to be completed by December.  Between December and when they 

look to bid the project in February or March of 2016, the assessment district would be 

created and a notice will be sent out of the estimated assessments. Following that there 

would be hearings held for any protests to the special assessments.  The bidding process 

would be scheduled in the spring of 2016 and construction would also begin in 2016.   

 

Commissioner Rohr stated that in the past, there has been disparity in concrete paving 

and asphalt due to material costs.  Director Froseth stated that asphalt costs have gone up 

due to the price of oil going up. However that gap has narrowed.  Concrete generally 

requires less maintenance and is more durable than asphalt.  Commissioner Laber 

questioned whether the shared use path for bicycles and pedestrians in the plans provided 

by KLJ would be part of the project?  Director Froseth stated that it would be part of the 

project and the Park Board was included in the discussion in order to get their input and 

they are on board with the project.  Commissioner Laber recommended replacing the 

water main as part of the project and said she agreed with the side-by-side comparison of 

concrete vs. asphalt.   

 

Mayor Van Beek stated that using Hub City Funds for this project is appropriate in order 

to offset the specials assessments for the residents in that area.  

 

Commissioner Tibke commented that discussion still needs to occur because an overall 

agreement on vision has not yet happened, in particular, the use of HUB City funds to 

make sure the funds are used pursuant to legislative intent.  She would like to have the 

discussion and the Commission vote on what needs to be decided for the future.   

 

City Attorney Brown commented that the Commission can vote to accept the staff 

recommendations in order to keep this project moving without deciding at this time how 

much Hub City Funding will be needed.   

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the staff recommendation for the Old Red Trail 

Construction project as presented.  Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call 

vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

J.          RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:    

1.        Second and Final Passage of Ordinance No. 1219 adding language to Chapters 

18 and 24 of the New Mandan Code of Ordinances related to offenses and traffic 

violations.  Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Second and Final Passage of 

Ordinance No. 1219 adding language to Chapters 18 and 24 of the New Mandan Code of 

Ordinances related to offenses and traffic violations. Commissioner Braun seconded the 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of October 6, 2015 

Page 6 of 8 

motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

2.       First consideration of Ordinance 1221 renaming street in Lakewood 8
th

 Addition. 

Planner Decker stated that when Lakewood 8
th

 Addition was recently replatted it 

continued the naming of the street as Shoal Loop.  When looking at the numbering 

sequence, Shoal Loop starts out as a north-south street and so it picked up that numbering 

scheme and then turned east-west with a different numbering scheme.  When crossing 

40
th

 Street you will cross numbers that are not in unison.  The recommendation is to 

rename that portion of the street, west of 40
th

 in the Lakewood 8
th

, as 24
th

 Street which is 

an east-west bound street and that will solve the problem of numbering.  There’s no 

development out there. This is a new subdivision so it will not interfere with any other 

street in that area.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1221 

renaming of a street in Lakewood 8th Addition. Commissioner Braun seconded the 

motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

3.      First consideration of Ordinance 1204 adding a section on graffiti to Chapter 16 

Nuisances.  Planner Decker said that the Beautification Committee worked with a draft 

revision to the ordinance prepared by City Attorney Brown and they looked at other 

codes from several cities for potential language.  He explained there is a need for a 

procedure to mitigate graffiti because it not only affects the building it is on, it affects the 

character of the community.  He said this is a proposal for consideration to add a graffiti 

section to our Nuisance Ordinance.  The property owner would have to mitigate action 

and we would be concerned about areas affecting the public on a case-by-case basis.  He 

explained that this is the process to get it started and to begin working with property 

owners to mitigate the conditions when necessary. 

 

Chief Bullinger stated that there were at least two incidents in the last year wherein 

homes and vehicles had spray painting damages done.  The number of incidents that 

occur is minimal but there have been multiple homes and vehicles damaged at one time.  

Bridges and other public places are also struck throughout the communities. 

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1204 adding 

a section about graffiti to Chapter 16 Nuisances. Commissioner Laber seconded the 

motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

4.       First consideration of Ordinance 1220 adding prohibition against incendiary 

balloons, sky lanterns and celebration lanterns in Chapter 10 Fire Prevention and 

Protection.  Fire Chief Nardello stated that the City of Mandan was approached by the 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of October 6, 2015 

Page 7 of 8 

Tesoro Refinery to consider banning the use of what is commonly referred to as sky 

lanterns within Mandan City limits due to the potential for a catastrophic event at the 

refinery by one of these lanterns landing on one of their petroleum tanks, particularly the 

ones with floating rooftops.  The City of Mandan and Morton County Emergency 

Management Services met and discussed the issues and agreed that there is a potential for 

a catastrophic event.  He stated that during the last 4
th

 of July season there were 5 

fireworks related calls that came in; three of which had to do with the sky lanterns.  He 

said that the Mandan Fire Department and Morton County Emergency Management 

Services supports banning the sky lanterns. The Morton County Commission is going to 

decide on a ban at their next meeting.  He also indicated that the Mandan Rural Fire Chief 

is very supportive of this ban on sky lanterns.  He mentioned that this matter will be 

discussed at the next ND Fire Chief’s Convention and they will probably be banned in all 

of North Dakota.  The 2015 International Fire Code Standards banned their use.   

 

City Attorney Brown stated that “A balloon that requires fire underneath to propel the 

balloon is defined as a firework under state law”.  State law also permits the sale of 

certain kinds of fireworks, not including balloons that are heat lighted with a fire.  These 

items are already illegal in the state.  Passing an Ordinance might be fine but they are 

already illegal to sell, use, possess, etc.  

 

Ron Day, Director of Public and Government Affairs for Tesoro came forward and 

provided the following: Tesoro has seen an increase in the use of the sky lanterns.  He 

stated Tesoro is very concerned about them landing in their petroleum tanks and the 

highly flammable processing units.  He said during the 4
th

 of July season they have 

operators and mechanics running around the refinery trying to extinguish the sky lanterns 

that land in their property. He commented that sky lanterns are distinct hazards.   

 

Chad Neff representing Memory Fireworks came forward and stated that over the years, 

the sky lantern has become more popular and the demand for them has increased.  He 

explained how the lantern is designed to work. They are biodegradable and made out of 

bamboo.  He agreed that there is a chance that when lit off they could land in the area of 

the refinery.  They are designed to go up and by the time they hit the ground they are 

supposed to be cooled off or at least fully burned out. He said that over the last 7-10 years 

through those lanterns, Memory Fireworks has donated roughly over $100,000 to the 

troops of ND, suicide prevention, cancer survivors, etc., so a large sum of money goes 

back into the community and the state.  He said the National Fire Marshal Office has told 

him there haven’t been any large fires that they have record of caused by these lanterns 

themselves.  He indicated that it is his understanding they are not considered to be illegal 

because they are not a “firework” because they do not blow up.  They are a balloon with 

a fuel patch on them.   

 

City Attorney Brown clarified that a balloon that requires fire underneath to propel the 

balloon, (which is what is being sold), is considered a firework under North Dakota law.  

He said that there is a list of fireworks that can be sold in North Dakota and the sky 

lantern is not on the list.  Under state law they are currently illegal to sell, use, possess, 

offer for sale, explode, bring into the state or cause to bring into the state. Attorney 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of October 6, 2015 

Page 8 of 8 

Brown clarified that he isn’t saying that you should not adopt an ordinance, but instead 

just reminding everyone that they are illegal. But if you are adopting an Ordinance, that is 

like putting frosting on the cake.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1220 adding 

prohibition against incendiary balloons, sky lanterns and celebration lanterns in light of 

the amount of danger it represents for the community and for the Tesoro Refinery at 

Chapter 10 Fire Prevention and Protection. 

 

Commissioner Braun seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

K.       OTHER BUSINESS:   

1.        Commissioner Tibke suggested that at the next meeting on October 20th or at an 

upcoming retreat there should be discussion on Hub City Funding.  The legislature passed 

this bill to enable municipalities to reduce the impact of rapid growth on the citizens of 

Mandan.   She commented that the City needs to look at the number of projects that will 

reduce the impact on the taxpayer. So we need to meet as a Commission and prioritize 

projects so the money will have maximum impact.  We should have a well thought out 

plan in place so we can argue for more funding to help the community with rapid growth 

and with taxes at the next session. 

 

2. Fire Chief Nardello provided a reminder that Tuesday, October 13
th

 is the annual Fire 

Prevention Open House at Fire Station No. 1, downtown Mandan, that will start with a 

parade at 6:30 and from 7 pm – 9 pm there will be fire prevention materials, 

demonstrations, and other fun things at the Fire Station for the kids.    

 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner  Rohr moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:37 p.m. Commissioner Laber 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed. 

 

   

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Arlyn Van Beek,  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 
 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider approval of the I-94 Business loop and Memorial 

Highway signing and retro reflectivity project award concurrence with NDDOT 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The DOT continually identifies and addresses sign 

maintenance and reflectivity. This year the DOT has identified signs needing this type of work in 

both the I-94 business loop, and the Memorial Highway corridors.   

 

In order for the NDDOT to award the project to the low bidder, Traffic Safety Services, Inc., the 

city is required to concur with the award. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1) NDDOT Concurrence Letter  

   2) Bid Results  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The city’s cost share of this project as stated in letter is to be $940.45, which 

is lower than the estimate before the bid of $1,112.  

 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend the board approve the concurrence of the I-94 Business 

loop and Memorial Highway Sign Improvements low bid.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the concurrence of the I-94 Business loop and 

Memorial Highway Sign Improvements low bid. 
 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 16, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: I-94 Business loop and Memorial Highway 

Signage Improvements, Award Concurrence 

 

  

Bid No. 1  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: I-94 Business loop and Memorial Highway Signage Improvements, Award 

Concurrence 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: I-94 Business loop and Memorial Highway Signage Improvements, Award 

Concurrence 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: I-94 Business loop and Memorial Highway Signage Improvements, Award 

Concurrence 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: I-94 Business loop and Memorial Highway Signage Improvements, Award 

Concurrence 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: I-94 Business loop and Memorial Highway Signage Improvements, Award 

Concurrence 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   To consider confirmation of special assessments for Street 

Improvement District #176.   

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   The project, along with cost and description of the 

improvements provided within the district, are as follows: 

 

o Street Improvement District #176 - ($1,520,258.22)  New asphalt street 

construction on 34th Avenue SE, Genoa Court SE and McKenzie Drive 

SE including curb & gutter, storm sewer, and street lights within the 

Lakewood 6
th

 and 7
th

 Additions. 

 

The assessment list for this district was published in the Mandan News and the public 

hearing before the Special Assessment Commission was held on September 23, 2015.  

All members of the Special Assessment Commission voted to approve moving this on to 

the City Commission.  There were no residents at the public hearing.  Assessments 

certified to Morton County by November 1
st
, 2015 to be included on December 2015 Tax 

Statements. 

                                                                     

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Special Assessment Commission Public Hearing September 23, 2015 minutes 

2. Special Assessment Published List for Street Improvement District #176 

3. District Map     

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Total Amount Assessed:  

         Street Improvement District 176 - ($1,520,258.22) 

           Years Assessed:  15 

           Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288% 

           No Interest Charged for the First Year          

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 14, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Special Assessments 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 

SUBJECT: Confirmation of special assessments for Street 

Improvement District #176. 

 

  

Consent No. 2 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 20, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessments 

Page 2 of 6 

 

                                   

STAFF IMPACT:    maximum     

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I would recommend the proposed assessments as certified by 

the Special Assessment Commission be confirmed on Street Improvement District 176. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to approve the special assessments for certification on 

Street Improvement District #176. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 20, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessments 

Page 3 of 6 

 

MANDAN SPECIAL ASSESSMENT COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 

September 23, 2015 

The Special Assessment Commission (SAC) met in the “Bosh Froehlich Meeting Room” 

at Mandan City Hall on September 23, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 

A. Roll Call:   Members present were Keith Winks, Deborah Holter and Chairman 

Carl Jacobsen.   Also present were Engineering Project Manager Kim Fettig and 

Special Assessment Analyst Phyllis Hager.   

Chairman Jacobsen noted the purpose of the Special Assessment Commission as stated 

according to North Dakota Century Code, 40-23-07.    

B. Consider approval of the September 2, 2015 Public Hearing Minutes.  Winks 

made a motion to approve the September 2, 2015 Public Hearing Minutes as 

presented.  Holter seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

C. Public Hearing on the following district.   

 

1. (Amended) Street Improvement District #176 (Lakewood 6th & Lakewood 

7th Additions)    The improvements for this project included asphalt street 

construction, installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights and 

chip seal on McKenzie Drive SE, Genoa Court SE and 34th Avenue SE within 

the Lakewood 6th and Lakewood 7th Additions.  Chairman Jacobsen 

acknowledged that no one was present at this public hearing in which to 

offer comments or objections on this project.  Winks  made a motion to 

confirm the special assessments as published for AMENDED Street 

Improvement District #176 and certify to the Board of City Commissioners for 

their consideration.  Holter seconded the motion.  The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

D. Adjourn.    There being no further business to come before the Commission, 

Holter made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 5:36 p.m.  Winks seconded the 

motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

_______________________ 

Carl Jacobsen, Chairman 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 20, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessments 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 20, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessments 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 20, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessments 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The Mandan Police Department is requesting Board approval 

with accepting a traffic safety grant/contract from the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation, Traffic Safety Office.  The grant/contract provides reimbursement for 

overtime and mileage when working, Occupant Protection Enforcement and Impaired 

Driving Enforcement blitz’s.         

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  In agreement with the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation Traffic Safety Office, the Mandan Police Department would receive 

reimbursement of cost in conducting extra patrols during state wide campaigns efforts 

with reducing the number of people killed in motor vehicle crashes.  The grant/contract 

identifies reimbursement funding of $8,700, for overtime and mileage.  The 

grant/contract period is October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016.     

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Copy of contract.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  $8,700 reimbursable funding to the city for cost with salaries and 

mileage.  The cost of these additional enforcement efforts are part of the approved 2015 

budget and requested in the 2016 budget.       

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Off -duty officers will be working overtime hours on a voluntary 

basis.    

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 13, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Dennis A. Bullinger 

PRESENTER: Chief Dennis A. Bullinger 

SUBJECT: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety 

Contract from the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation, Traffic Safety Office.  

 

  

Consent No. 3  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 2 of 12 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the acceptance of the Traffic Safety Grant/Contract 

#12151996, for $8,700.     

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the acceptance of Traffic Safety Contract 

#12151996 from the North Dakota Department of Transportation, for the time period of 

October 1, 2015 to September 30, 2016.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 3 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 4 of 12 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 5 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 6 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 7 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 8 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 9 of 12 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 10 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 11 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 12 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

Request is to replat a portion of lot 7 to create 2 lots and provide an access easement. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

This area was platted in 1979.  Since then Lot 7 was split using Auditor’s plat 

descriptions.  Auditor’s plats are not recognized as subdivision plats for purposes of 

issuing building permits. 

 

There is an existing building on proposed Lot 2 that will be renovated.  In order to pull a 

building permit, the building has to be on a subdivided lot. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Aerial photo 

2. Sylvester’s Industrial Park Second Addition plat 

3. Proposed replat 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 

for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Recommend approval. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to approve replat of Lot 7, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park Second Addition 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 16, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Consider for approval replat of Lot 7, Block 1, 

Sylvester’s Industrial Park Second Addition 

 

  

Consent No. 4 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Replat of Lot 7, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park Second Addition 

Page 2 of 4 

 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Replat of Lot 7, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park Second Addition 

Page 3 of 4 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Replat of Lot 7, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park Second Addition 

Page 4 of 4 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

Request is to consolidate lots into one parcel. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

The Spirit of Life Church owns all of this land and wishes to combine all the lots into 1 

lot and adjust easements.  A new building is planned that straddles an existing lot line and 

encroaches on an existing unused easement. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Aerial photo 

2. Proposed replat 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 

for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Recommend approval. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to approve replat of Fisher’s First Addition 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 16, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Consider for approval replat for Fisher’s First 

Addition 

 

  

Consent No. 5 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Replat of Fisher’s First Addition 

Page 2 of 3 

 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Replat of Fisher’s First Addition 

Page 3 of 3 

 



 
 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 

 

 
PURPOSE 
Consider the special assessments for Weed Cutting of 2015, Sidewalks of 
2015 and, Health and Safety of 2015.  

 
BACKGROUND 
Weed Cutting of 2015 – For the eradication, cutting and control of weeds and tall 
grasses, and any other unhealthy vegetation exceeding six inches in height. 
Assessment for these costs are allowed under Mandan Code of Ordinances 
Section 16-5-5 and North Dakota Century Code 40-05-01.1. 
 
Sidewalks of 2015 – For the construction, repair and rebuilding of sidewalks, 
curb and gutter. Assessment for these costs are allowed under Mandan Code of 
Ordinances Section 115-7-3 and North Dakota Century Code 40-29-05 and 40-
31-02. 
 
Health and Safety of 2015 – For the repairs of curb stops, water lines and sewer 
lines, and the removal of trees. Assessment for these costs are allowed under 
Mandan Code of Ordinances Section 16-4-7 and North Dakota Century Code 40-
05-01.1. 
 
The Notices for these assessments were published on October 2, 2015 and 
October 9, 2015. 

 
 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 14, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Finance 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Greg Welch 

PRESENTER: Greg Welch, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Special assessments for Weed Cutting of 
2015, Sidewalks of 2015 and, Health and 
Safety of 2015. 

 

  

CONSENT #6 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 
Subject: Special assessments for Weed Cutting of 2015, Sidewalks of 2015 and, 
Health and Safety of 2015. 
Page 2 of 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
Notice of Assessments: 

 Weed Cutting of 2015 

 Sidewalks of 2015 

 Health and Safety of 2015 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Weed Cutting of 2015 = $43,683.43 (1 year assessment) 
Sidewalks of 2015 = $11,235.85 (10 year assessment) 
Health and Safety of 2015 = $53,433.33 (5 year assessment) 
 
STAFF IMPACT 
No additional staff impact. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW 
The special assessments were prepared in accordance with the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances and the North Dakota Century Code. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
To approve the special assessments for Weed Cutting of 2015, Sidewalks of 
2015 and, Health and Safety of 2015.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to approve the special assessments for Weed Cutting of 2015, Sidewalks 
of 2015 and, Health and Safety of 2015.  



 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS 

WEEDS OF 2015 

 

  

Notice IS HEREBY GIVEN that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots 

and tracts of land on which the City of Mandan caused the cutting, spraying and removal of 

grass and weeds or caused the performance of such acts which contributed to the general 

health, safety and welfare of the community.  

 

Seq#         Block Lot   Address    Assessment 

Borden Harbor West 

9472  2 3   3509 46
th

 Avenue SW   165.00 

 

Bridgeview Bay Re-Plat 

10293  2 4   2313 Pirate’s Loop SE  330.00 

10294  2 5A   2317 Bayview Court SE  385.00 

10295  2 6   2321 Bayview Court SE  397.08 

10296  2 7   2325 Bayview Court SE  220.00 

10297  3 1   2423 Pirate’s Loop SE  399.48 

 

Bridgeview Bay 1
st
 

9990  1 26   2203 Bridgeview Court SE  550.00 

9991  1 27   2207 Bridgeview Court SE  330.00 

9992  1 28   2211 Bridgeview Court SE  385.00 

9994  1 30   2219 Bridgeview Court SE    55.00 

9995  1 31   2223 Bridgeview Court SE    55.00 

10007  1 43   2333 Bayview Court SE  165.00 

10010  1 46   2403 Bayview Court SE    55.00 

10014  1 50   2419 Bayview Court SE  385.00 

 

Developers West Acres 1st 

265 B  2 W 47’ of N ½ of 9  3912 34
th

 Avenue NW  165.00 

   Unit 1A 

Diane’s 1
st
  

495  3 17   601 6
th

 Street NE     55.00 

 

Eagle Ridge 1
st
  

11407  1 3   3003 12
th

 Avenue NW  165.00 

11408  1 4   2829 12
th

 Avenue NW  165.00 

11411  1 7   2830 8
th

 Avenue NW   165.00 

 

Evergreen Heights 2
nd

 Replat 

9439  2 1   1616 14
th

 Avenue SE   330.00 

 

 



Heart Ridge  

10983  1 19   1520 Ridge Drive SE   165.00 

10984  1 20   601 14
th

 Street SE   165.00 

10990  1 26   713 14
th

 Street SE   165.00 

11010  3 13   1521 Ridge Drive SE   165.00 

11011  4 1   1309 7
th

 Avenue SE   737.60 

11012  4 2   1409 7
th

 Avenue SE   828.65 

 

Heart Ridge Add Replat 

10991 01 1 16   717 14
th

 Street SE   330.00 

10991 02 1 15   719 14
th

 Street SE   495.00 

10991 03 1 14   721 14
th

 Street SE   330.00 

10991 04 1 13   723 14
th

 Street SE   330.00 

10091 05 1 12   801 14
th

 Street SE   165.00 

10992 01 1 11   803 14
th

 Street SE   165.00 

 

Heart Ridge 2
nd

  

11191  1 2   511 18
th

 Street SE   165.00 

11193  1 4   503 18
th

 Street SE   165.00 

11194  1 5   411 18
th

 Street SE   165.00 

11195  1 6   407 18
th

 Street SE   165.00 

11196  1 7   403 18
th

 Street SE   165.00 

11198  2 2   1813 Plains Bend SE   165.00 

11219  3 7   402 18
th

 Street SE   165.00 

11221  3 8   1800 Plains Bend SE   165.00 

11222  3 9   405 Fields Court SE   165.00 

11235  3 22   404 Fields Court SE   165.00 

11236  3 23   400 Fields Court SE   165.00 

11241  3 28   1612 Plains Bend SE   165.00 

11242  3 29   1608 Plains Bend SE   165.00 

11243  3 30   1604 Plains Bend SE   165.00 

 

Heart Ridge 3
rd

 

11019  1 23   600 14
th

 Street SE   330.00 

11244  1 1   1509 Plains Bend SE   165.00 

 

Heartview 

1076  8 15 & 16  1308 1
st
 Street NW   165.00 

 

Helmsworth & McLean 1
st
  

1371  21 7 & 8   1310 2
nd

 Street NE   330.00 

 

Highland 2
nd

  

4123  1 2(less S 125’)  1300 Collins Avenue     55.00 

 

 



Hit 1
st
  

10913  1 2   1211 7
th

 Avenue SE   165.00 

 

Keidel’s South Heart Terrace   

10801  4 22   209 Keidel Trail SW   165.00 

 

Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 2
nd

  

11089  1 10   1206 Sunflower Lane SW  165.00 

11115  3 1   811 Canyon Road SW   165.00 

11116  3 2   807 Canyon Road SW   165.00 

11117  3 3   803 Canyon Road SW   165.00 

11131  3 17   612 Keidel Trail SW   165.00 

11138  4 1   811 Keidel Trail SW   330.00 

11149  4 12   1700 Amber Place SW  165.00 

11151  4 14   1705 Spring Court SW  330.00 

11152  4 15   1709 Spring Court SW  330.00 

11156  4 10   1812 Spring Court SW  165.00 

11157  4 20   1808 Spring Court SW  165.00 

11158  4 21   1804 Spring Court SW  165.00 

 

Lakewood 2
nd 

Addition   

9854  3 23   3327 Bay Shore Bend SE  165.00 

9866  4 1 & E 20’ of 2  4509 South Bay Drive SE  330.00 

 

Lakewood Commercial Park 2
nd

   

9885  2 2(less S 69.80’) 4220 Shaun Lane SE Unit 1  165.00 

 

Lakewood Commercial Park 2
nd

 Replat B2  

10956  1 13   10956     165.00 

 

Lakewood Commercial Park 3
rd 

 4RPLT 

10313  1 1A   4103 Shoal Loop SE   206.80 

 

21
st
 Street Shop Condo Addition  

10110A 1 Aud Lot A of 6 4200 21
st
 Street SE   378.54 

 

Lakewood Commercial Park 3
rd

 
 
Replat B2  

9880D  1 5   4600 21
st
 Street SE   198.85 

 

Lakewood Commercial Park 5
th

    

6398  1 1   2401 40
th

 Avenue SE   849.66 

 

Lakewood Harbor 2
nd

 Addition   

9715  1 7   4906 Lakewood Drive SE  686.67 

9716  1 8   4902 Lakewood Drive SE  669.89 

9726  1 18   4504 Shoreview Place SE  236.92 



9729  1 21   4202 Bay Shore Bend SE  165.00 

9730  1 22   4100 Bay Shore Bend SE  330.00 

9742  1 34   3913 Waterfront Place SE  165.00 

9749  1 41   3900 Waterfront Place SE  165.00 

 

Lakewood Harbor 3
rd

 Addition   

10034  1 5   4307 Borden Harbor Place  165.00 

10035  1 6   4311 Borden Harbor Place  330.00 

10037  1 8   4319 Borden Harbor Place  165.00 

10038  1 9   4320 Borden Harbor Place  330.00 

10039  1 10   4316 Borden Harbor Place  330.00  

10042  1 13   4300 Borden Harbor Place    55.00  

10043  2 1   4101 Bay Shore Bend SE  330.00 

10044  2 2   4201 Bay Shore Bend SE  165.00 

10045  2 3   4304 Lakewood Drive SE  385.42 

10046  2 4    4300 Lakewood Drive SE  502.51 

10047  2 5   4224 Lakewood Drive SE  189.27 

10048  2 6   4220 Bayfront Place SE  634.67 

10049  2 7   4216 Bayfront Place SE  639.93 

10050  2 8   4212 Bayfront Place SE  528.85 

10063  2 21   3930 Lakewood Drive SE  492.91 

10065  2 23   3922 Lakewood Drive SE  526.02 

10066  2 24   3918 Lakewood Drive SE  538.44 

10069  2 27   3832 Lakewood Drive SE  533.65 

10070  2 28   3828 Lakewood Drive SE  681.87 

10071  2 29   3824 Lakewood Drive SE  165.00 

10072  2 30   4009 Beachfront Place SE  665.11 

10073  2 31   4017 Beachfront Place SE  681.87 

10074  2 32   4012 Beachfront Place SE  462.65 

10076  2 34   4004 Beachfront Place SE  330.00 

 

Lincoln Ridge Estates 1
st 

Addition   

9406  3 6   2304 East View Place SE    91.04 

 

Lincoln Ridge Estates 2
nd

 
 
Addition   

10495  2 1   2404 West View Place SE    74.28 

 

Mandan Heights 5th 

2538  2 E 34.28’ EXC. E 14.20’ of 10      

      512 17
th

 Street NW     55.00 

 

Meads 

4019  10 W 100’ Lots 22-24 110 9th Avenue NW     55.00 

 

 

Mandan Proper 



3314  13 10   W 102’ of 18 & W 102’ of N 17.3’ of 17 

      110 7
th

 Avenue NW   495.00 

3318  14 3   107 7
th

 Avenue NW   165.00 

3436  24 W 60’ of 1  207 2
nd

 Street NE   165.00 

3854  56 2   509 4
th

 Avenue NW   127.05 

3874  57 N 33 1/3’ of 9  506 6
th

 Avenue NW   330.00 

 

Meadows 3
rd

   

11336  1 3   2611 7
th

 Avenue NW   165.00 

11337  1 5   2607 7
th

 Avenue NW   165.00 

 

RPLT Meadows 3
rd

   

11342-03 2 3   2610 7
th

 Avenue NW   165.00 

 

Meadow Ridge 3
rd  

 Add. RPLT    

11343  2 2A   2606 7
th

 Avenue NW   165.00 

11344  2 3A   2602 7
th

 Avenue NW   165.00 

 

Meadows 5
th

  

11075  4 1   5031 39
th

 Avenue NW  165.00 

11078  5 2   5034 39
th

 Avenue NW  165.00 

 

Meadows 7
th

  

11388  1 4   3806 Wildrye Circle NW  165.00 

11393  2 5   3803 Wildrye Circle NW  165.00 

 

N. P. 1
st
  

4285  68 S 15’ of 2 & 3  505 3
rd

 Avenue NE   495.00 

4396  79 7 & S 10’ of 8 & N 10’ of vacated 5
th

 St. NW of 7  

602 5
th

 Avenue NW     55.00 

4408  80 7, 8 & N 40’ Vacated 5
th

 St. NW adj. of 7 

      602 6
th

 Avenue NW   165.00 

4517  89 W ½ of 4 & 5  802 1
st
 Avenue NW   165.00 

4720  106 15    1014 6
th

 Avenue NW   330.00 

 

N. P. 2
nd

   

4843  5 W ½ of 1 & 2  200 8
th

 Avenue SW   330.00 

 

Plainview Heights 12
th

 Addition 

10576  2 7   2905 Percheron Drive SE  165.00 

10583  2 14   1401 27
th

 Street SE     55.00 

10584  2 15   1301 27
th

 Street SE   551.32 

10591  3 6   2900 Messara Place SE  165.00 

 

 

Plainview Heights 14
th

 Addition 



11365  3 1   3104 Percheron Drive SE  165.00 

11366  3 2   3108 Percheron Drive SE  165.00 

11367  3 3   3112 Percheron Drive SE  165.00 

11368  3 4   3116 Percheron Drive SE  165.00 

11369  3 5   3200 Percheron Drive SE  165.00 

 

Pirates Cove 1
st
 Addition 

170  1 1 (less Bldg 1 & less 2,672 sq ft of vacated part of street  

      2200 Pirates Loop SE   330.00 

 

Ripple’s 4th 

8573  1 4   1400 12
th

 Avenue SE   330.00 

 

Sunset Acres  

8052   29 of B of SW4 16-139-81      

      3500 Old Red Trail NW  262.09 

 

Terra Vallee 1
st
  

7537  3 12   2704 11
th

 Avenue NW  165.00 

 

Trail West Addition 

9912  2 10   4504 32
nd

 Avenue NW    98.23 

9913  2 11   4508 32
nd

 Avenue NW    62.30 

9914  2 12   4512 32
nd

 Avenue NW    57.50 

9915  2 13   4516 32
nd

 Avenue NW    55.10 

9916  2 14   4520 32
nd

 Avenue NW    55.10 

9917  3 1   4517 32
nd

 Avenue NW    62.30 

9918  3 2   4513 32
nd

 Avenue NW    64.70 

9919  3 3   4509 32
nd

 Avenue NW    74.28 

9920  3 4   4505 32
nd

 Avenue NW    86.26 

9921  3 5   4501 32
nd

 Avenue NW    93.44 

9922  3 6   4405 32
nd

 Avenue NW   112.61 

9923  3 7   4401 32
nd

 Avenue NW   198.85 

 

West Hills Estates 1st 

10499  1 3   4401 47
th

 Avenue NW  437.82 

10501  2 1   4720 Impala Court NW  411.46 

10508  3 1   4520 Impala Court NW  165.00 

10512  3 5   4504 Impala Court NW  397.08 

10513  3 6   4500 Impala Court NW  562.08 

10514  3 7   4503 Impala Court NW  430.63 

10515  3 8   4507 Impala Court NW  557.30  

10527  3 20   4721 Impala Court NW  418.65 

 

 

West Hills Estates 2nd 



10667  1 1   4605 47
th

 Avenue NW  418.65 

10676  4 1   4721 Corvette Street NW  411.46 

10678  4 3   4713 Corvette Street NW  330.00 

10680  4 5   4705 Corvette Street NW  385.00 

10682  4 7   4601 Corvette Street NW    81.46 

10683  5 1   4520 Corvette Street NW  165.00 

10684  6 1   4521 Corvette Street NW  232.08 

 

      TOTAL          43,683.43 

 

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan will 

meet in regular session at City Hall on October 20, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. at which meeting action 

will be taken upon such assessment list. Any person may appear to present testimony 

regarding the above assessments. 

     

 

Publish:     October 02, 2015  Diane I Leingang 

       October 09, 2015 



NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS 

SIDEWALKS OF 2015 

 

  

Notice IS HEREBY GIVEN that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots 

and tracts of land on which the City of Mandan caused sidewalks to be constructed, replaced 

or repaired and the cost thereof.   

 

Seq#  Block  Lot   Address   Assessment 

    

Dinsmore-Peterson 

732  0  1 – 3   601 3
rd

 Street SW  1138.43 

 

Diane’s 3rd 

7840  2  13   408 Division Street           2489.96 

 

Mandan Proper 

3605  36  E ½ of 6  301 Collins Avenue N       4521.96 

 

Meads 

4112 A  25  E 88’ 5 ½’ of 6 & 7  908 3
rd

 Street SW            470.94 

 

N.P. 1st 

4330  73  W80’ of 3 & 4 & Adj.    

E 10’ vac  200 5
th

 Street NE           2614.56 

 

 

 

 

 

      TOTAL           11,235.85 

       

              

 

 

 

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan will 

meet in regular session at City Hall on October 20, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. at which meeting action 

will be taken upon such assessment list.  Any person may appear to present testimony 

regarding the above assessments. 

     

 

Publish:     October 02, 2015  Diane I Leingang 

        October 09, 2015 

  

 



NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS 

HEALTH & SAFETY OF 2015 

 

  

Notice IS HEREBY GIVEN that the following is a true and correct list of the particular 

lots and tracts of land on which the City of Mandan caused the performance of such acts 

which contributed to the general health, safety and welfare of the community.  

 

Seq#  Block  Lot  Address   Assessment 

Diane’s 1
st
  

594  7  16  804 6
th

 Avenue NE  2,403.50 

 

Hoovestals 1st 

2187  1  14  1000 Adobe Trail SE     220.00 

 

Mandan Proper 

3334  15  9  204 8
th

 Avenue NW  7,084.00 

3440  24  4  205 2nd Avenue NE     715.00 

3442  24  N 40’ of 5  203 2nd Avenue NE     385.00 

3473  26  S ½ of 4 205 4
th

 Avenue NE  4,664.00 

3507  28  8  202 5
TH

 Avenue NE  1,584.00 

3679  41  10  306 6
th

 Avenue NW     825.00 

3786  50  W 80’ of 7  400 2nd Avenue NW           14,371.50 

 

 

Meads 

4112A  25 E 88’ 5 ½” of 6 & 7 908 3
rd

 Street SW  2,475.83 

 

N.P. 1
st
 

4274  67 W 70’ of 6  206 4
th

 Street NE  2,750.00 

4420  81 E 50’ Lots 7 – 9 706 5
th

 Street NW  1,028.50 

4423  81 W 45’ of 7 & W 45’ of S 22’ of 8 

      712 5
th

 Street NW     440.00 

4488  86 E 70’ of 11 & 12 307 7
th

 Street NW  1,265.00 

4538  91 7 -9   306 7
th

 Street NW     990.00 

4559  93 5   803 4
th

 Avenue NW  1,182.50 

 

Sharon Heights 1
st
  

5771  5 3 less N 10’  1304 Monte Drive NW 7,309.50 

5910  3 7 & E10’ of vac alley 1507 Sunset Drive NW 3,740.00 

 

      TOTAL            53,433.33 

 

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan 

will meet in regular session at City Hall on October 20, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. at which 

meeting action will be taken upon such assessment list.  Any person may appear to 

present testimony regarding the above assessments. 

   

Publish:     October 02, 2015  Diane I Leingang 

        October 09, 2015 



 
 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 

  

 
PURPOSE 
Consider the assessment of Delinquent Utility Billing Accounts for 2015.  

 
BACKGROUND 
According to the Mandan Code of Ordinances, all water, sewage, garbage 
collection and disposal, and street lighting charges or fees for any services 
supplied, provided or furnished by the city shall constitute liens upon the 
respective lots, tracts, parcels of land and premises receiving such service. All 
such charges or fees which have been properly billed to the owner or occupant of 
the premises served and which are more than thirty days past due on September 
30th of each year shall be certified by the city auditor to the county auditor 
between the first and tenth day of October of each year. The city auditor in so 
certifying such charges and fees shall specify the amount thereof, the description 
of the premises served and the name of the owner thereof. The amount so 
certified shall be extended by the county auditor upon the tax rolls against such 
premises and collected by the county treasurer and paid to the city treasurer in 
the same manner and time as other county and municipal taxes are assessed, 
certified, collected and returned. 
 
Written notifications for these assessments were sent to the affected property 
owners. 

 
ATTACHMENT 
Delinquent Utility Billing Accounts for 2015. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Delinquent Utility Billing Accounts for 2015 = $12,541.42 (1 year assessment) 
 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 
PREPARATION DATE: October 14, 2015 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Finance 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Greg Welch 
PRESENTER: Greg Welch, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: Assessment of Delinquent Utility Billing 

Accounts for 2015. 

 

  

CONSENT #7 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 
Subject: Assessment of Delinquent Utility Billing Accounts for 2015. 
Page 2 of 2 

 

STAFF IMPACT 
No additional staff impact. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW 
The assessment was prepared in accordance with the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances and the North Dakota Century Code. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
To approve the assessment of Delinquent Utility Billing Accounts for 2015.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to approve the assessment of Delinquent Utility Billing Accounts for 
2015. 



DELINQUENT UTILITY BILLING ACCOUNTS FOR 2015

Seq # Account Customer Address Assessment

4258 01-0310000-7 Lamp Real Est Invest LLP 104 4th Street NE 258.71$         

4234 01-0910001-8 Tina/Chris Ness 412 1st Avenue NE 137.20$         

3460 01-1960000-1 Cory Herman 308 & 308 1/2 1st Street NE 215.60$         

3526 02-0530001-9 Crystal Black Cloud 307 5th Avenue NE 221.54$         

1164 02-1140002 Ervin & Cora Schantz 106 6th Avenue NE 121.72$         

1277 03-0680001-6 John & Tonya Schmitt 1102 1st Street NE 57.97$           

2133 05-2360001-5 Doug & Carol Dworshak 312 12th Street NW 189.17$         

5257 05-3020000-5 Amy Brossart 109 7th Street NE 154.19$         

5267 05-3040000-6 Sam Towner & Kirk Olson 109 6th Street NE 130.24$         

3747 06-0260000-6 Katelyn Douglas %Peterson Prop MGMT LLC 405 4th Street NW 63.04$           

3654 06-0550001-9 Preston Demaray 407 3rd Street NW 73.36$           

3365 06-0760001-4 Owen Electric LLP 207 4th Avenue NW 137.42$         

3720 06-1350000-8 Marlene Brunelle 411 5th Avenue NW 151.80$         

4460 07-0370101-7 John Kraft Jr. 702 5th Avenue NW 125.40$         

4443 07-0390000-7 Seth Huntington 705 5th Avenue NW 143.88$         

4720 07-1270600-1 Betty Leingang 1014 6th Avenue NW 427.17$         

4618 07-1400103-6 Christopher A. Vandal 904 1/2 5th Avenue NW 115.97$         

5739 08-0710000-1 Josh Osborn 1403 Monte Drive NW 263.36$         

5887 08-1010000-4 Fred & Chris Mehlhoff 1203 Sunset Drive NW 146.21$         

5891 08-1050000-6 Dean Buechler 1303 Sunset Drive NW 250.36$         

4053 09-0880000-1 Carol Kambeitz 109 11th Avenue NW 196.80$         

11666 10-3490000-3 Jodi Dietz Woodlands M.H. Park LLC 62.56$           

2835 10-4540002-8 Lloyd & Mary Deringer 1008 1st Street SE 1,295.66$      

148 11-1240001-4 Crystal Binstock 707 13th Avenue NW 203.92$         

5014 12-0050000-5 Jared Ohlhauser 1216 7th Avenue SE 157.15$         

5033 12-0270000-8 Diana Gonzalez 1413 8th Avenue SE 190.23$         

5153 12-0606301-8 Ron & Terri L. Jochim 1505 9th Avenue SE 432.16$         

5156 12-0609302-5 Lloyd & Mary Deringer 1500 8th Avenue SE 88.30$           

5535 12-1070001-2 Dan Fuchs 1404 18th Street SE 165.22$         

7522 13-4370001-5 Sara Durbin 2600 10th Avenue NW 142.05$         

7538 13-4530000-2 Chris Ulrich 2700 11th Avenue NW 153.82$         

7989 13-5430001-7 Kelly & Tristen Wyckoff 1200 27th Street NW 658.72$         

670 14-3630001-4 Joseph & Mary Jackson 301 14th Street NE 152.66$         

5645 17-1030001-3 Daryl Jorgenson 4601 West Roughrider Circle 100.17$         

5661 17-1190001-4 Amy Haugen 5917 Horseshoe Bend 155.32$         

5667 17-1250001-4 James & Kathy M Walton 6012 Horseshoe Bend 388.01$         

5641 17-3220001-0 Chad & Suzanne Gartner 4802 E Roughrider Circle 147.40$         

10548 17-4530001-9 Steven Mott 5015 37th Avenue NW 150.91$         

9905 17-5050101-6 Darren A. Becker 4533 30th Avenue NW 125.40$         

8263 18-0971001-5 Zacks Shack Fish Houses 4515 Memorial Highway 395.45$         

3033 18-1550001-7 Doran Stoltz 2726 Memorial Highway SE 200.15$         

7924 18-1550101-0 Doran Stoltz 2722 Memorial Highway SE 221.20$         

8095 19-0170001-7 Mike Braun 3804 Old Red Trail 117.90$         

10920 20-2300001-8 Scott Collins 3809 Bay Shore Bend SE 213.82$         

10129-29 22-0206002-2 Jeffrey & Mari Schaeffer 2234 Lexi Loop SE #1 28.26$           

10129-15 22-0210201-2 Jeffrey & Mari Schaeffer 2318 Lexi Loop SE #3 120.56$         

6375 30-0950000-6 Bruce Greig 809 4th Street SW 226.58$         

735 30-1320002-7 Frank Kraft 607 3rd Street SW 101.20$         

4843 30-1790000-6 TDC Rentals LLC 200 8th Avenue SW 629.83$         

14 31-2360000-7 Joe Keller 903 6th Street NW 462.52$         

3314 31-3100001-3 John Bender 110 7th Avenue NW 352.79$         

3316 31-3250000-8 Bernie Heid 111 7th Avenue NW 109.34$         

4491 35-0580000-3 Roosevelt W. Watts 709 1st Avenue NW 234.22$         

5817 38-1970001-3 David Fischer 1809 Monte Drive 179.42$         

5818 38-1980001-6 Carl Jacobsen 1807 Monte Drive NW 122.11$         

1102 39-1560001-7 Lorna Strand 1400 1st Street NW 140.78$         

10261 40-0000601-3 Jim & Shelly Sheetz 905 27th Street SE 334.53$         

TOTAL 12,541.42$    

The following is a list of delinquent utility billing accounts for 2015. These amounts 

consist of water, wastewater, stormwater, solid waste, and street light services furnished to 

customers. It is recommended that these accounts be assessed to the respective properties 

receiving these services according to the Mandan Code of Ordinances. 



IConsent No.8 I

GAMING SITE AUTHORIZATION
OFFlCE OF ATIORNEY GENERAL
SFN 17!}96 (08/2015)

G- L __)_
Site License Number

(Attorney General Use Only)

Horse Race North Dakota is hereby authorized to conduct games of
(Full, Legal Name of Gaming Organization)

chance under the license granted by the Attorney General of the State of North

location: Moscow Bar the

202 E. Main Street Mandan 58554

Dakota at the following

address of which is:

Morton
(County)

k,-30 .. ()(\ I b
(Street) (City) (ZipCode)

Date(s) Authorized: Beginning \ ( II II:; Ending -=.:.~~f)I4:....:..::.:t}_~~-",------'J..>L.!.~ _

If raffle or poker activity, provide specific date of event or drawing(s): -.:0'-- _
Specific location where games of chance will be conducted and played at the site (required):

Games will be played and conducted in bar area, excludlnq the restrooms.

Number of twenty-one tables (required) (if zero, enter "0") : °
RESTRICTIONS: (to be completed ONLY if restrictions are set by the local governing body)

1. Days of week of gaming operations _

2. Hours of gaming

3. ListSlliQb specific game type prohibited _

3. List eacn specific game type approved:

Attorney General Date Signature of City/County Auditor Date

PRINT Name I Official Position of person signing above

INSTRUCTIONS:

1. City/County Auditors - Retain a copy of the Site Authorization for your files.

2. City/County Auditors - Return the original Site Authorization form to the Organization.

3. Organizations - Send the original, signed, Site Authorization to the Office of Attorney General with any
other applicable licensing forms for final approval.

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO:

Office of Attorney General
Licensing Section
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125
Bismarck, ND 58505-0040
Telephone: 701-328-2329 OR 800-326-9240



RENTAL AGREEMENT
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN 9413 (Rev. 08-2015)

License Number (Office Use Only)

Si

1. Is 81ngo going to be conducted atlhis site? II II I)'
ta. If "Yes" to number 1 above, is Bingo the primary game conducted? f+1p

If "Yes," enter the monthly rent amount to be paid. Then answer Questions 2 ··7 but do not
enter any rent amounts.

2. Is a raffie drawing going to be conducted at this site?

3. Is Prize Boards Involving a dispensing device conducted at this site?

.B' No DYesmNo 0 Yes

.~ No 0 Yes

~ No DYes

$

$

$

6. Is Pull Tabs involving either a jar bar and/or a dispensing device conducted at this site?

Please check: 0 Jar Bar Only IsrDispenSing Device Only 0 Jar Bar and Dispensing Device

4. Is Twenty-One conducted at this site?

Number of Tables with wagers up to $5 _

Number of Tables with wagers over $5

5. Is Psddlewheels conducted at this site?

Number of Tables

X Rent per Table $ _

X Rent per Table $ _

X Rent per Table $

~ No DYes

DYes

o No £Sl Yes

$

$

$

Total Monthly Rent

$ 5,qj!;
TERMS OF RENTAL AGREEMENT:

This RENTAL AGREEMENT is between the Owner (LESSOR) and Organization (LESSEE) that will be leasing the site to conduct games of chance.

The LESSOR agrees that no game will be direcUy operated as part of the lessor's business.

The L!:SSOR agrees that the (Jessor), (lessor's) spouse, (lessor's) common household members, (management), (management's) spouse. or an
employee of the lessor who is in a position to approve or deny a lease may not conduct games at any of lhe organization's sites and. except for officers and
board of directors members who did not approve the lease, may not play games at that site. However, a bar employee may redeem a Winning pull tab or prize
boards involving a dispensing device and sell raffle tickets or sports pool chances on a board on behalf of an organization.

The LESSOR agrees that lhe lessor's on call or temporary or permanent employee will not, directly or indirectly, conduct games at the site as an employee of
the lessee on the Same day the employee is working in the area of the bar where alcoholic beverages are dispensed or consumed.

If the LESSEE provtdes the Lessor with a temporary loan of funds for redeeming pull tabs or prize boards, or both, inVolving a dispensing device. the Lessor
agrees to repay the ontire loan Immediately when the lessee discontinues using the device at the site.

The LESSOR agrees not to interfere with or attempt to influence the lessee's selection of games, determination of prizes, including a bingo jackpot prize, or
disbursement of net proceeds.

The LESSOR agrees not to loan money 10, provide gaming equipment to, or count drop box cash for the lessee.

At the LESSOR'S option, the lessee agrees that this rental agreement may be automatically terminated if the lessee's gaming license is suspended at this site
for more than fourteen days or revoked.

Signature of Lessor TWe

Title

Date

IO~
Date

Iv ....;/ ---)01
(over)



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The Mandan Fire Department would like to replace a 

1993 fire engine with a new engine that is fully compliant with the National Fire 

Protection Association standards on fire apparatus.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Our department has provided for the replacement 

of the 1993 Pierce fire truck within our equipment replacement plan many years. Funding 

for the new truck has also been financial planned within the fire equipment reserve fund 

using funding from the Insurance Premium Tax distributed by the State of North Dakota. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Fire Department equipment replacement plan. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   No fiscal impact, aside from advertisement costs, until award to a 

successful bidder at which time we would ask to amend the 2015 equipment reserve 

budget to purchase the chassis this year. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Fire department staff has already prepared truck specifications. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   None 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend that the Mandan City Commission allow the fire 

department to advertise for request of bids for a new fire engine. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Motion to approve the fire department's request to advertise 

for bid one new 1500gpm fire engine. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 14, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Fire 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Steve Nardello, Fire Chief 

PRESENTER: Steve Nardello, Fire Chief 

SUBJECT: Request to Advertise for Fire Truck Bids 

 

  

Consent No. 9 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Request to Advertise for Fire Truck Bids 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

Vehicle Inventory as of 2014

Unit Year Replacement Plan

Engine 12 1993

Brush 1 2001

Unit 2 2004

Ladder 14 2004

Unit 1 2006

Engine 21 2007

Chief 1 2008

Engine 11 2013

Air 1 2010

Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Estimated Equip. Reserve Balance 111,190$    90,096$      264,515$    205,421$    180,821$    156,221$    131,621$    17,021$      (97,579)$     (177,179)$   

Revenue:

WSI Grant  5,266$        14,225$      

Homeland Security Grant 14,250$      

Fire Insurance Taxes 126,262$    141,569$    141,550$    151,450$    151,450$    151,450$    151,450$    151,450$    151,450$    151,450$    

General Fund 50,000$      50,000$      50,000$      -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           

Expenditures:

WSI Grant (7,296)$       (19,169)$     

MDC (15,120)$     

Equipment under $5,000 (34,950)$     

Brush Truck (55,000)$     

Replace Engine 12 (197,356)$   (225,000)$   

Replace Engine 12-Lease Payments  (90,000)$     (90,000)$     (90,000)$     (90,000)$     (90,000)$     

Replace Tahoe PD Unit

Replace Tahoe PD Unit

Replace Expedition PD Unit

Add Reserve Engine-Lease Payments (90,000)$     (90,000)$     (90,000)$     (90,000)$     

General Fund-Fire Department Pension (86,050)$     (86,050)$     (86,050)$     (86,050)$     (86,050)$     (86,050)$     (86,050)$     

Equip Reserve Ending Balance 90,096$      264,515$    205,421$    180,821$    156,221$    131,621$    17,021$      (97,579)$     (177,179)$   (201,779)$   

Personnel:

Firefighter/EMT 6 4 0 0 4 2 2 2

Captain 3

Total 9 13 13 13 17 19 21 23 23 23

Additional personnel requests would 

provide the following staffing by 2020: 

2- Firefighters per station with three 

stations 

3- firefighters per station with two 

stations

2016 Replace with used police vehicle

2029 Replace with new

2017 Replace with used police vehicle

Ford Expedition

2016 Replace with new

2018 Replace with used police vehicle

2021 Replace with new

2030 Review for replacementMobile Compressor

E-One Ladder

Chevrolet Tahoe

E-One Pumper 2027 Replace with new

Spartan Pumper

Ford Brush Truck

Chevrolet Tahoe

City of Mandan Fire Department
Equipment Replacement and Staffing Schedule 

Pierce Pumper

Description

2033 Replace with new



Consent No. 101
added 10-19-2015

CITYOF MANDAN

SUNDAY ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMIT

Date ofApplication: ,.._Lil=J{1Jl-.t:)_'"--- _
Name of Licensee: VYkJnl£hJl.: (flo--c-e...f 4':2 ::)"
Address of Licensee: II I ( ! '!lc ,ku ,A/cL
Address of public facility ifused: _

State the purpose oforganization: 'Zd{fZ!:2J~.:2:td;1i;,:£<:"""",Z",-=--J6..{.'L-t2jbb~
."pttfwtd?p)Ju.l6:ufl!- l?0v" 1-eP" -//,- .. ;) ;::l .. ~?
jJZ17~ t/" rl:2>9 ,;}, 7 'JI1v\ ~,. 10 .. n· d, '-II.-,,-,S>.:.\ _
f0G' 'l - \ '-/- ;)", I

Daters) of requested Sundayts): ,4Jt;/

Time ofday which the applicant desires the permit to be in effect: / «'{)(j:""
Description of the rooms on the premises, which have been specifically reserved, for the
dispensing of alcoholic beverages and dancing during the term of the permit:

.xlot:~1 ~,"",aa=</l""".~=,•=-2.4:-,1 _

State whether the applicant requests permission to open to the general public, and if so an
explanation of the reasons for the request:

'-- '--?2JOV2 O.?l.;L......,~



If applicable, estimated number of police officers necessary to provide security at the
dance to be open to the public:

__/f/L-/1.!.-' .

I, the applicant, will abide to the following conditions:

a. Alcoholic beverages may be distributed for consumption on the premises and
Dancing may be permitted only in those rooms specifically reserved for event
activities;

b. Dancing and the dispensing ofalcoholic beverages shall be permitted only
between the hours of twelve noon on the date specified in the permit and one
a.m. on the following Monday;

c. Any conditions or circumstances delineated by the Board relating to the conduct
of the event or to the admission of the general public to the event.

d. The applicant as a condition to the issuance of such permit consents and agrees
that any City police officer may enter upon and inspect the licensed premises or
any part thereof at any time for the purpose of determining compliance with the
conditions ofthe permit;

e. The permit issued under this section may not expand the scope of the class of
alcohol license held by the applicant;

f. An applicant which holds a Class A liquor license must supply copies of the most
recent six month's filings of the City food and lodging taxes and allow the City to
verify with the ND State Tax Department that said tax payments have been made.

g. The permittee shall comply with all other applicable ordinances and laws relating
to the use and sale of aleoholic beverages in the City,

~tf/Ld- tu~
Signature ofApplicant

Received by:

Date Received: ~:':':-~=:..J",.~_

Commission Approval:

Auditor Approval: _

$5,00 Fee per Sunday-Amount paid $ 8:'5,ci)

Copy to be filed with Mandan Police Department

Receipt # _



Eligible Applicants. Pursuant to the provisions ofNDCC 05-02-05.1 only the following
alcohol licensees or facilities are eligible to apply for a Sunday Event Alcoholic Beverage
Permit:

a. A "quall fled alcoholic beverage licensee," which is defined to mean any
licensee who has paid the city lodging and restaurant tax imposed by the city
and who continues to pay such tax thereafter. Any alcoholic beverage
licensee, except the Class B and Special Class B licensee, may become a
"qualified alcoholic beverage licensee" by voluntarily paying the city's
lodging and restaurant tax prior to the filing ofthe permit application but the
licensee must also continuously pay the tax throughout the license year.

b. Any publicly owned or operated facility.



Consent No. 10ii
Added 10-19-2015

CITY OF MANDAN

SUNDAY ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMIT

October 19th,2015

Lukes Bar LLC dba Silver Dollar Bar

200 Eat Main

Date of Application:

Address of Licensee: . _

Name of Licensee:

Address of public facility if used: _

barState the purpose of organization: _

Date(s) of requested Sunday(s): Oct.25,Nov.1,Nov8,Nov.15,
Nov.22,Nov.29,Dec.6,Dec.13,Dec.20,Dec.27

Time of day which the applicant desires the permit to be in effect: 12.00 pm

Description of the rooms on the premises, which have been specifically reserved, for the
dispensing of alcoholic beverages and dancing during the term of the permit:

three rooms ,all have bars and bathrooms

the whole bar

State whether the applicant requests permission to open to the general public, and if so an
explanation of the reasons for the request:

we would like to have the bar open on Sundays

to seve the public



If applicable, estimated number of police officers necessary to provide security at the
dance to be open to the public:

I, the applicant, will abide to the following conditions:

a, Alcoholic beverages may be distributed for consumption on the premises and
Dancing may be permitted only in those rooms specifically reserved for event
activities;

b. Dancing and the dispensing of alcoholic beverages shall be permitted only
between the hours of twelve noon on the date specified in the permit and one
a.m. On the following Monday;

c. Any conditions or circumstances delineated by the Board relating to the conduct
of the event 01' to the admission of the general public to the event.

d. The applicant as a condition to the issuance ofsuch permit consents and agrees
that any City police officer may enter upon and Inspect the licensed premises 01'

any part thereof at any time for the purpose of determining campi lance with the
conditions of the permit;

e. The permit issued under this section may not expand the scope of the class of
alcohol license held by the applicant;

f. An applicant which holds a Class A liquor license must supply copies of the most
recent six month's filings of the City food and lodging taxes and allow the City to
verify with the ND State Tax Department that said tax payments have been made.

g. The permittee shall comply with all other applicable ordinances and laws relating
to the use and sale of alcoholic beverages in the City.

, .p/ //' I--I.2.~?C:d-,,"- gd0~--1t_~ -//
Signature of Applicant ,jY t'/'"

16·· \C\- lSDate Recei ved: _---'-""--_---'--'--'''''''' _

Commission Approval: _

Auditor Approval: _

$5.00 Fee per Sunday-Amount paid $ .5U o c Receipt # _

Copy to be filed with Mandan Police Department



  

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To authorize the installation of water and sewer for the 

development of the subject area. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Lakewood 9th Addition plat is located south of 

Memorial Highway and west of 40
th
 Avenue SE.  The proposed utilities only serve the developer 

of the benefiting land; therefore, this is being paid for by the developer under a 3-way agreement.  

A letter of certificate of deposit has been secured for the project.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Project Vicinity Map, by KLJ 

2. Project Overview Map, by KLJ 

3. Resolution Approving Plans and Specifications and Authorizing  Execution of 3-way 

Agreement    

4. 3-way agreement 

5. Certificate of Deposit Letter        

    

FISCAL IMPACT:   The entire cost of the project is being paid by the developer as part of the 

3-way agreement.    

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

his review.   

 

RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports the authorization to move forward with this 

project. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 15, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Engineering & Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Consider resolution approving plans and 

specifications and authorizing the execution of a 3-

way agreement for water & sewer improvement 

Project 2015-17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

 

  

New Business No. 2 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 2 of 14 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the resolution approving the plans and 

specifications and authorizing execution of 3-way agreement for water and sewer improvement 

Project 2015-17 (Lakewood 9th Addition). 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 3 of 14 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 4 of 14 

 

  
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 5 of 14 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 6 of 14 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 7 of 14 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 8 of 14 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 9 of 14 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 10 of 14 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 11 of 14 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 12 of 14 

 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 13 of 14 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

17(Lakewood 9th Addition). 

Page 14 of 14 

 

 



  

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To authorize the installation of water and sewer for the 

development of the subject area. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Meadowlands Addition plat is located between 

Memorial Highway and 3
rd

 Street SE.  The proposed utilities only serve the developer of the 

benefiting land; therefore, this is being paid for by the developer under a 3-way agreement.  A 

letter of credit has been secured for the project.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Project Vicinity Map, by Swenson, Hagen and Co. 

2. Subdivision Plat 

3. Resolution Approving Plans and Specifications and Authorizing  Execution of 3-way 

Agreement  

4. 3-way agreement 

5. Letter of credit          

    

FISCAL IMPACT:   The entire cost of the project is being paid by the developer as part of the 

3 way agreement.    

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

his review.   

 

RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports the authorization to move forward with this 

project. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 15, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Engineering & Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Consider resolution approving plans and 

specifications and authorizing the execution of a 3-

way agreement for water & sewer improvement 

Project 2015-10(Meadowlands Addition). 

 

  

New Business No. 3 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 2 of 15 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the resolution approving the plans and 

specifications and authorizing execution of 3-way agreement for water and sewer improvement 

Project 2015-10 (Meadowlands Addition). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 3 of 15 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 4 of 15 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 5 of 15 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 3-WAY AGREEMENT FOR WATER AND 

SEWER IMPROVEMENT PROJECT NO. 2015-10 

(Meadowlands Addition) 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

 1. That the plans and specifications for the Water and Sewer Project No. 

2015-10 serving Meadowlands Addition in the City of Mandan, as presented by 

Meadowlands Development LLC, on behalf of themselves, are hereby approved, ratified 

and confirmed as the plans and specifications for said project, in accordance with which 

said improvement project will be constructed, subject to any further modifications of the 

plans and specifications by the Board as provided by law.  The plans and specifications 

shall be filed in the Office of the City Administrator and City Engineer and open for 

public inspection.  The named streets within the subdivision to receive the improvements 

are: 18
th

 Avenue SE.                        

 2. That the President of the Board is hereby authorized to enter into a 3-way 

agreement between the City of Mandan; the developer, Meadowlands Development LLC, 

and the developer's contractor. 

 

 3. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage. 

 
           

      President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

James Neubauer, City Administrator 

 

Date of Passage:   October 20
th
, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 6 of 15 

 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 7 of 15 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 8 of 15 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 9 of 15 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 10 of 15 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 11 of 15 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 12 of 15 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 13 of 15 

 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 14 of 15 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2015-

10(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 15 of 15 

 

 
 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

Now that the city code has been reformatted, it is time to update zoning rules and requirements. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

This draft ordinance addresses several sections with the following topics: 

1. Definitions; 

2. Planning and Zoning Commission Powers and Duties; 

3. Supplementary Provisions; 

4. Incidental Uses; 

5. Use Groups; and 

6. Special uses 

 

Substantial editing has been done.  Definitions were updated.  Planning and Zoning approvals were given 

a 6 month time limit.  The location of towers and other tall structures was linked to the height of the 

structure.  The verbiage for extensions into yards was edited.  Additional requirements for fences and 

walls were added.   Substantial revisions were made to the requirements for accessory buildings.  

Restrictions on the use of tents and RV’s as dwellings were added.  Significant revisions were made to the 

accessory use standards.  A decision matrix was added to the use group section in order to provide a 

formal process for adding a new use.  Substantial revisions were made to use groups including grouping 

uses, moving uses and adding uses.  Procedures for review and approval of special uses were revised to 

include the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Some items listed as special uses were removed as not 

needed and drug or alcohol outpatient treatment or counseling facility was added. 

 

Included with this agenda memo is a “track changes” working document that shows the proposed changes 

to the current language in the code. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. “Track Changes” Working Document 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 16, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Consider amendments to Chapters 101 and 105 of the 

city municipal code 

 

  

New Business No. 4 



 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Staff recommends adoption of this ordinance. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to Resolutions and Ordinances No. 2 
 

Working Document Showing Proposed Changes 
 

Ordinance No. __1223__ 
 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Portions of Subpart B Land Development and 
Public Services of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mandan Related to Definitions, 

Planning and Zoning Commission Powers and Duties, Supplementary Provisions, 
Incidental Uses, Use Groups and Special uses. 

 
Be it ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Chapter 101 Administration and Planning, Article 1.  In General is amended to read. 
 
Sec. 101-1-3.  Definitions. 
 
"Animal hospital or clinic" means a facility for the care and well-being of household petsanimals under 
the direct supervision of a licensed veterinarian; including, but not limited to, medical services, 
grooming, confinement or kenneling for medical purposes and full medical services meeting the 
following requirements:but excluding ia. Incinerating or cremating of animals or animal parts upon 
the premises. is prohibited;b. Includes an on-site, porous, well-drained exercise area for pets to use 
that is no smaller in size and dimension than 15 feet by 25 feet which is to be kept neat and clean at all 
times;c. Animal carcasses and/or animal tissues are to be frozen, sealed in waterproof containers, and 
either kept in a frozen state until commercial waste pickup day or removed directly from the facility to 
the City's waste landfill site or a licensed crematorium; andd. The term "household pet" as used 
herein is specifically defined to include only the following taxonomically identified animals;(1)
 Mammalian Genus species(a) Canis familiaris, the domestic dog, and(b) Fells catus, the 
domestic cat(2) Mammalian Families(a) Leporidae, rabbits,(b) Cricetidae, hamsters,(c) Gerbillidae, 
gerbils, and(d) Muridae, mice and rats(3) Avian Orders(a) Psittaciformes, parrots, parakeets, lories, 
budgerigars, and cockatiels,(b) Passeriformes, canaries and finches, and(c) CoIumbiformes, pigeons 
and doves; and(4) Reptilian Groups(a) Squamata, lizards and snakes, and(b) Testudine, turtles. 
 
"Animal hospital" means a facility for the care and well-being of animals under the direct supervision of 
a licensed veterinarian; including, but not limited to, grooming, confinement or kenneling for medical 
purposes, and full medical services. 
 



“Dog daycare” means a facility for the daytime care and feeding of dogs. 
 
“Kennel" means a commercial facility for the indoor boarding of household pets, as defined in 
subsection (4) of the term “animal clinic,” that includes an on-site, porous, well-drained exercise area for 
pets to use that is no smaller in size and dimension than 15 feet by 25 feet, which is kept neat and clean 
at all times. 
 
“Pet" means one of the following taxonomically identified animals: 

(1) Mammalian Genus species; 
(a) Canis familiaris, the domestic dog, and 
(b) Fells catus, the domestic cat; 

(2) Mammalian Families; 
(a) Leporidae, rabbits, 
(b) Muridae, gerbils, hamsters, mice and rats, and 
(c) Mustelidae, ferret;  

(3) Avian Orders; 
(a) Psittaciformes, parrots, parakeets, lories, budgerigars, and cockatiels, 
(b) Passeriformes, canaries and finches, and 
(c) CoIumbiformes, pigeons and doves; 

(4) Reptilian Groups; 
(a) Squamata, lizards and snakes; and 
(b) Testudine, turtles. 
 

"Pet grooming" means a facility for the indoor grooming cosmetic care and maintenance, with no 
overnight boarding, of the pets listed in subsection (4) of the definition of the term “animal clinic.” 
 
“Pet hospital or clinic” means a facility devoted to the medical care and associated services for the 
limited number of animals defined as pets as opposed to an animal hospital or clinic which treats all 
animals. 
 
Section 2.  Chapter 101 Administration and Planning, Article 2.  Planning and Zoning Commission is 
amended to read. 
 
Sec. 101-2-5.  Officers; duties; vacancieselection of officers. 
 
Sec. 101-2-8.  Powers and duties. 
 

(l) Length of approval or recommendation.  Planning and zoning commission approvals or 
recommendations are valid for six months.  Should the applicant or the city commission fail to act on the 
approval or recommendation within six months, the action of the planning and zoning commission will 
lapse and a new application must be submitted and all applicable fees paid. 
 
Section 3.  Chapter 105 District Regulations (Zoning), Article 1.  In General is amended to read. 
 
Sec. 105-1-2.  Supplementary provisions. 
 

The regulations specified in this chapter shall be subject to the following supplementary provisions 
and interpretations. 



 
(1) Structures excluded from height limits.  A building height limit set forth in this chapter shall not 

apply to belfries, chimneys, domes, flagpoles, flues, monuments, cupolas, radio broadcast and 
communication towers, television towers, spires, tanks, water towers or similar structures, or to 
bulkheads, elevators, water tanks or similar roof structures and mechanical appurtenances. No 
such structure located on a roof shall have a total area greater than 25 percent of the roof area 
of the building; nor shall such structure be used for any residential purpose or any commercial 
or industrial purpose other than a use incidental to the main use of the building.  No such 
structure shall be located closer to the lot line than a distance greater than 110% of the height 
of the structure above ground level. 

 
(2) Projections into yards. Steps, stairways, terraces and un-roofed open porches or decks may 

extend into any minimum front or rear yard not more than six feet and into any minimum side 
yard not more than four feet, provided, however, that the floor thereof is no higher than that of 
the entrance to the building. and such features may extend into any minimum side yard not 
more than four feet; provided, however, that such feature shall not be less than two feet distant 
from a lot line. Fire escapes and outside open stairways may project not more than 4.5 feet into 
any minimum required yard. Chimneys may extend into any minimum yard not more than two 
feet.  No such feature shall extend closer than three feet to a lot line. 

 
(3) Existing front yard depth. When the majority of lots in a block has, prior to the enactment of this 

chapter, been lawfully occupied with buildings having a greater front yard depth than required 
by these regulations, no building hereafter erected or altered shall have less front yard depth 
than the average depth of said existing front yards. This regulation shall apply also to the side 
yard, adjacent to a street, of a corner lot, but shall not be construed as to reduce the buildable 
width of a corner lot to less than 24 feet. No portion of any alley shall be considered a part of 
any yard. 

 
(4) Fences and walls. The building line and yard requirements of these regulations shall not apply to 

retaining walls or other walls or fences.  Walls and fences must meet the following criteria: 
a. Fence on corner lot.  No wall or fence shall extend more than 3 feet above the top of curb 

within the areas identified herein in order to provide a clear sight triangle for drivers 
entering an intersection. 
1. For each leg of an intersection that is uncontrolled, the clear sight triangle shall begin 25 

feet back from the property corner measured along the property line. 
3. For each leg of an intersection that is stop sign controlled, the clear sight triangle shall 

begin at a point 10 feet behind the stop sign or 20 feet from the adjoining street curb 
line, whichever is less, as measured from each edge of the travel lane. 

4. For each leg of a traffic light controlled intersection, the clear sight triangle shall begin at 
a point 10 feet behind the stop bar or 15 feet from the intersecting street curb line, 
whichever is less, as measured from each edge of the travel lane. 

b. Retaining wall.  Retaining walls greater than 4 feet in height may not be placed closer than 3 
feet to a property line unless there is a recorded joint use and maintenance agreement for 
the properties on each side of the retaining wall.  Retaining walls greater than 4 feet in 
height, whether monolithic or terraced, must be designed by a registered engineer. not over 
five feet in height; except that on a corner lot in any residential district shall be no fence, 
wall terrace, structure, shrubbery planting or other obstruction to vision having a height 
greater than three feet above the curb level for a distance of 25 feet from the intersection 



of the front and side street lines. On a corner lot in a commercial or industrial district, no 
portion of a building or other obstruction to vision between two and ten feet above the curb 
level, except a post or column, shall occupy the space by the vertical planes on the front and 
side street lines and on the line joining points on such street lines at distances of five feet 
from the intersection thereof. 

c. Fence height.  Unless specified otherwise elsewhere in this code, fences in residential 
districts shall not exceed 6 feet in height and fences in other than residential districts shall 
not exceed 8 feet in height. 

d. Fence material.  Corrugated or sheet metal shall not be used for fencing in residential 
districts.  Wooden fences shall be constructed with treated lumber or painted.  The use of 
barbed or razor wire is limited to security fencing around commercial, industrial, 
governmental or utility facilities.  Use of an electrified fence is not permitted within city 
limits. 

 
(5) Location of aAccessory buildings. 

a. Location. 
1. In multi-family, commercial, industrial and agricultural districts, location of accessory 

buildings shall conform to the requirements for principal buildings. 
2. In R7, R3.2, RH and RMH any residential districts, all accessory buildings shall be located 

in the rear yard and shall be not less than two three feet from a rear or side lot line or 
less than five feet from an alley line. In the case of a corner lot, accessory buildings, 
other than a detached garage, shall be located along the rear half of the adjoining 
residential lot’s side lot line.  A detached garage on a corner lot must be set back 25 feet 
from the side street property line or a distance equal to the setback of the principal 
building on the adjoining residential lot, whichever distance is greaterthe rear line of 
which abuts a lot in a residential district having frontage on the street adjacent to the 
side street line of the corner lot, an accessory building shall be located at least 30 feet 
from the side street line and, if located less than 60 feet from the side street line, shall 
be at least ten feet from such rear lot line. An accessory building, or any enclosure, 
group, or run, or any part used for the housing, shelter, or sale of animals or fowl, shall 
be located at least 25 feet from any rear or side lot line and at least 50 feet from any 
building used for dwelling purposes on an adjoining lot. 

3. Accessory buildings containing a garage door that faces an alley must be set back at 
least 10 feet from the alley in order to accommodate the turning radius of a vehicle.  
When the property has no existing parking spaces other than the area for the proposed 
accessory building or has more than one dwelling unit, the minimum setback for an 
accessory building containing a garage door facing the alley must be 22 feet in order to 
allow space for parking of a vehicle in front of the garage door. 

b. Use.  Other than where zoning allows more than one dwelling unit on a lot or where a 
dwelling unit is permitted on a commercial or industrial zoned property, no accessory 
building may be used for dwelling purposesWhere a corner lot abuts a side street having no 
lots fronting thereon the same side of the street as such corner lot, an accessory building 
may be located not less than 15 feet from the side street line. 

c. Structures included.  Any structure, whether open or closed in, that is not part of a principal 
building.  A private garage having any part of its wall in common with a dwelling or being 
attached to a dwelling by a breezeway or roofed passageway up to 6 feet long shall be 
considered a part of the a principal buildings and shall comply in all respects with the 
requirements of this chapter applicable to the principal building. 



d. Number.  For residential lots up to 10,000 square feet, two accessory buildings are allowed.  
For residential lots greater than 10,000 square feet up to 20,000 square feet, three 
accessory buildings are allowed.  For residential lots exceeding 20,000 square feet, four 
accessory buildings are allowed. 

e. Surface.  Except for storage sheds not exceeding 120 square feet, no accessory building shall 
have an outer surface of corrugated or sheet metal. 

f. Timing.  Construction of the principal structure must have commenced before construction 
of an accessory structure may proceed. 

g. Size.  For R7, R3.2, RH and RMH districts, the total square footage of all accessory buildings 
may not exceed 10% of the lot area and the maximum size of any accessory building shall be 
no greater than 75% the size of the primary structure on the lot.  For RM, CA and CB 
districts, the total square footage of all accessory buildings may not exceed 20% of the lot 
area. 

h. Structure coverage.  The total area of all structures on the lot may not exceed the maximum 
structure coverage established for the zone in which the lot is located. 

i. Height.  The maximum height of an accessory building is 16 feet to the midspan of the roof 
system or 25 feet to the peak of the roof, whichever is less.  The maximum wall height is 10 
feet. 

j. Water and sewer.  Any accessory building that is connected to water and sewer must have a 
frost protected foundation. 

k. Pole structures.  Pole structures are not permitted in R7, R3.2, RH, RM, RMH, CA and CB 
districts. 

l. Portable storage containers.  Portable storage containers may not be used as an accessory 
building on a residentially zoned property.  Portable storage containers are to be counted 
when computing allowable lot coverage. 

 
(6) Through lots. Any building constructed on an interior lot having frontage on two streets shall be 

located so as to comply with the regulations governing front yards on both streets. 
 
(7) Mixed uses. Any building containing two or more dwelling units and space designed or used for 

commercial or industrial purposes shall comply with all requirements for multifamily dwellings 
in the district in which it is located; provided, also, that no such building designed or used for 
mixed residential and other uses shall be permitted in any district in which multifamily dwelling 
is not permitted. 

 
(8) General regulations for manufactured and modular homes. The following general regulations 

pertain to mManufactured and modular homes that are placed on individually owned lots, and 
all manufactured homes must meet the following standards.: 
a. The home shall have no less than 1,000 square feet of floor area except where the zone in 

which it is to be located has a greater minimum square footage requirement. 
b. The home shall have no less than a 24-foot exterior width. 
c. The roof shall be pitched with a minimum vertical rise of 2.5 inches for each 12 inches of 

horizontal run. 
d. The home shall have a non-reflective roofing material. 
e. All transporting apparatus including The home shall not have wheels, axles, transporting 

lights or removal towing apparatushitch must be removed. 



f. The home shall be located and installed or built according to the same standards for 
foundation system, permanent utility connections and setback which would apply to a site-
built, single-family dwelling on the same lot. 

g. The design, location and appearance of the home must be in harmony with existing adjacent 
properties, structures and locations. 

h. Any such home which, according to its title document, was manufactured prior to the year 
during which it is to be sited upon its permanent foundation shall be subject to the 
provisions of chapter 107111, article XI10 moving of vehicles. 

i. Nothing in this subsection shall be deemed to supersede any valid restrictive covenants of 
record. 

 
(9) Use of barbed or razor wire limited.  The use of barbed or razor wire is limited to security fencing 

around commercial, industrial, governmental or utility facilities. 
 
Use of tents.  Tents are not permitted, except in a developed camp ground, manufactured home or 

travel trailer park or in the back yard of a developed residential lot with a permanent residential 
structure. 

 
(10) Use of RV as residence.  Other than in a developed mobile home or RV park, an RV or similar 

movable dwelling unit may not be used as a permanent dwelling unit on a lot.  Temporary use 
for a limited time by a family member or visitor who does not pay rent is permitted.  Temporary 
use while building a permanent structure on the property is regulated elsewhere in this code. 
 

 
Sec. 105-1-3. Incidental uses. 
 

The uses of land and buildings permitted in the several districts established by this article chapter 
are designed by listing the principal uses permitted. In addition to such principal uses, it is the intent of 
this chapter and this section to permit, in each district, those uses customarily incidental to any principal 
use permitted in the district. Such permitted incidental uses are specifically listed as follows, and any 
listed use is permitted on the same lot with the principal use to which it is incidental: 

 
(1) Accessory uses. 

a. Dwellings. 
1. Private garage used only for the storage of non-commercial motor vehicles, commercial 

vehicles with a rated capacity less than 2.5 tons and personal property. 
2.  when the storage space, together with the principal building and the space of any other 

accessory buildings, does not exceed the floor area ratio coverage permitted within such 
zoning districts. No private garage or off-street parking space incidental to a dwelling 
located in a residential district may be used to store a tractor-trailer, freight-hauling 
vehicle or either part, nor any other commercial vehicle having a rate capacity in excess 
of 2.5 tons. No more than oOne commercial vehicle having a rated capacity of 2.5 tons 
or less shall be stored in the open on any the lot on which the principal use is a dwelling. 

23. Private greenhouse or vegetable, fruit or flower garden from which no products are sold 
or offered for sale. 

34. Children's playhouse and playground equipment. 



45. Shed or other accessory building, tool room for storage of equipment used in grounds or 
building maintenance or home occupation, but not including stable, chicken house or 
other buildings to house agricultural livestock. 

5. Not more than three dogs, four months of age or older. 
6. Private kennel. 
7. Customary domestic pPets as defined in chapter 101 of this code, but not including 

horses, poultry or agricultural livestock. 
87. Incinerator incidental to the principal use only. 
9. Private swimming pool and bath house. 
108. Statuary, trellises, barbecue stoves, fireplaces or similar ornamental or landscaping 

features. 
b. Church. 

1. Parish house, together with any use accessory to a dwelling as listed in subsection (1)a 
of this section. 

2. Religious education building. 
3. Bulletin board not to exceed 20 square feet in area. 
4. Off-street parking lot for use, without charge, of members and visitors to the church. 

c. Health-medical group. 
1. Any use accessory to a dwelling as listed in subsection (1)a of this section. 
2. Off-street parking lot for use, without charge, of staff members or visitors. 
3. Private garage. 
4. Nun's home, nurse's quarters. 
5. Laundry incidental to hospitalAccessory buildings containing residence accommodations 

for staff. 
2. Accessory buildings providing utility and maintenance services for the primary use. 

d. Office-bank, retail, commercial, recreation groups. 
1. Storage of customer-, client- or operator-owned vehicles. 
2. Storage of supplies, stock and merchandise within a fully enclosed building. 
3. Manufacturing and repair facilities incidental to the principal use, subject to the 

following limitations: 
(i) Floor space shall not exceed 25 percent of the total floor space devoted to the 

principal use. 
(ii) No motive power other than electricity shall be used. 
(iii) No motor used on any machine for manufacturing and repair shall exceed one 

horsepower. 
(iv) All operation shall be conducted so that no dust, odor, smoke, noise, vibration, heat 

or glare created by such operation is perceptible from any boundary line of the lot 
on which the principal use is located. 

e. Service groups. 
1. Garage or parking lot for the storage of customer-, employee-, client- or operator-

owned vehicles. 
(2) Home occupation. 

a. DwellingLimitations. There is permitted, in a dwelling, any occupation customarily incidental 
to the principal use as a dwelling, subject to the following limitations: 
1. No person other than a member of the immediate family occupying a the dwelling is 

employed. 
2. Storage of business inventory but Nno stock in trade is displayed or sold upon the 

premises. 



3. No alteration of the principal building that changes the character thereof as a dwelling. 
4. No illuminated sign is used, and no sign other than one giving the name and occupation, 

and not more than one square foot in area, is displayed. 
5. No more area than 25 percent of the area of one story ofground floor area of the 

primary building, whether located in the primary building or an accessory building, is 
devoted to the home occupation, not including rooms let to lodgers. 

b. Customary home occupations. The following are declared to be customary home 
occupations as intended by this section.: 
1. Dressmaker, seamstress or, tailor. 
2. Music teacher or dance instructor. 
3. Artist, sculptor or author. 
4. AuthorHome office. 
5. Emergency treatment, only of patients by physicians, dentists or licensed drugless 

physiciansDog daycare limited to a maximum of four dogs in the dwelling at any one 
time, including dogs owned by the residents of the dwelling. 

6. Emergency interview, only of clients by lawyers, architects, engineers and similar 
professionsOvernight boarding of one dog or one cat in addition to any animals owned 
by the residents of the dwelling. 

7. MinisterConsulting and event planning services. 
8. The letting for hire of not more than two rooms for residential purposes to not more 

than four persons. 
9. Pet grooming of no more than two animals at one timerestricted. 
10. Daycare up to 12 children. 

 
Sec. 105-1-4. Use groups. 
 

(a) Decision matrix.  In order to carry out the purposes of this chapter, certain uses having similar 
characteristics are classified together as use groups. In any district in which a use group is permitted, it is 
the intent of this chapter to permit any particular member of that use group to locate within that 
district. The uses listed are examples of uses that fit the category.  Not every possible use is listed.  
Should an application for a use that, in the opinion of the city planner, is not listed within a use group, 
the city planner shall evaluate the proposed use applying the criteria and following the procedure listed 
belowIn any district in which a use group is not listed as a permitted use, it is the intent of this chapter 
to prohibit each and every member of that use group from locating within that district. These use groups 
shall apply to all zoning districts except the DC Downtown Core and DF Downtown Fringe Districts. 

(1) Criteria. 
a. The actual or projected characteristics of the specific use in relationship to the stated 

characteristics of the various use groups. 
b. The amount of site area, floor space and equipment required for the use. 
c. The frequency and type of sales activity generated by the use. 
d. The nature of the customer interaction generated by the use, i.e. on site, remote access, 

daily or infrequent. 
e. The number of employees required per shift for the use. 
f. The hours of operation. 
g. The building site arrangement and access requirements for the use. 
h. The types of vehicles or equipment used in association with the use. 
i. The number of vehicle trips generated by the use per day of the week over the course of a 

week, month and year. 



j. The means by which the use advertises itself. 
k. Whether the use is likely to be located independent of other uses on the site or established 

in a shared use environment. 
(2) Procedure.  The city planner shall issue a written opinion as to the use’s appropriate 

designation.  The city planner’s decision shall be given to the applicant and posted on the city 
web site.  The decision may be appealed to the Commission, either by the applicant or an 
adjoining property owner, within 15 days of posting of the decision.  If the city planner 
determines that the proposed use does not fit within any use group or zoning district, a request 
shall be forwarded to the Commission for review and recommendation as to the disposition of 
the request for approval of the specific use. 

  

(1b) Group dwelling.   
a. Defined. A group dwelling is a building used for residential purposes and in which:. 
(1) Distinguishing characteristics of a group dwelling include: 

a. 1. The occupants are normally unrelated.; 
b. 2. Separated cooking facilities are not provided for individuals or groups of individuals;. 
c. 3. Persons residing in the building are domiciled more or less permanently, in contrast to 

the transient characteristic of occupants of hotels, treatment facilities or bed and breakfast 
facilities;. and 

d. Correctional facilities are not included. 
(2)b. Group uses. The following uses are declared to beexamples of a group dwelling uses: 

a. 1. Boardinghouse or rooming house;. 
b. 2. Private club, lodge hall, union headquarters, but not including a club in which the 

principal activity is one normally conducted as a business.3. Convent ,or monastery;. 
c. 4. Fraternity ,or sorority house;. and 
d. 5. Rooming house.6. Group homes licensed by the department of human services. 
 

 c. Not group uses. The follow uses are declared to not be group dwelling uses: 
1. Bed and breakfast facilities. 
2. Correctional facilities operated by any local political subdivision, the department of corrections, or 
private service provider under contract with the department of corrections. 
3. Day care centers licensed by the department of human services. 
4. Treatment facilities for adults or adolescents licensed by the department of human services. 

(2c) Retail group A.  a. Defined. A use in retail group A is one in which the principal activity is the 
sale or retail sale of fresh, freshly prepared or packaged food products, merchandise and associated 
services conducted primarily within an enclosed buildingmerchandise and which:. 

(1) Distinguishing characteristics of uses in retail group A include: 
a. Use is dependent1. Depends, to some extent, on the proximity of other retail and service 

establishments;. 
b. 2. Merchandise is not of such nature as to require transport to the customer’s premises in 

any vehicle larger than a pickup or small deliverybe customarily taken away by the customer 
in a truck;. and 

c. 3. Includes nNo incidental manufacturing or processing is carried on in such a manner as to 
produce offensive noise, dust, odor, glare, heat or vibration perceptible or measurable from 
outside the building in which the use is located. 

(2)b. Group uses. The following are examples ofuses are declared to be in retail group A uses: 
a. 1. Antiques, collectibles or recycled items store.; 
b. 2. Appliances, radio, television store and electronics rental and sales.; 



c. Art, hobby or craft supplies; 
d. Camera sales and service, photo supplies or photographic studio; 
e. Jewelry, clock and watch sales, cleaning and repair; 
f. Books and other printed materials, except those regulated under article 2, chapter 12 and 

article 5, chapter 105 of this code; 
g. Recorded video or music for rental or sale, except those regulated under article 2, chapter 

12 and article 5, chapter 105 of this code; 
h. Musical instrument rental, sale and repair; 
i. Butcher shop, retail sales bakery, delicatessen, fast food, full service restaurant, coffee shop 

or other eat-in or take-out food preparation establishment;  
j. Ice cream, soda fountain or candy; 
k. Department store, variety store or specialty merchandise including sporting goods or 

exercise equipment; 
l. Drugstore; 
m. Flowers, gifts or greeting cards; 
n. Furniture and accessories including bedding, home furnishings and office equipment; 
o. Office supplies including copying or shipping services; 
p. Groceries and household items; 
q. Hardware, tools, equipment, supplies and accessories; 
r. Auto parts, supplies, accessories and outdoor activity supplies with no servicing or repair of 

vehicles; 
s. Package liquor; and 
t. Pets and pet supplies with associated grooming and dog daycare services. 

3. Auto accessory store. 
4. Book, magazine, newspaper store. 
5. Butcher shop. 
6. Camera shop, art supply store. 
7. Candy store. 
8. Clothing, clothing accessories store. 
9. Delicatessen. 
10. Department store. 
11. Drugstore. 
12. Five and ten cent store. 
13. Flower shop. 
14. Furniture, office equipment store. 
15. Gift shop. 
16. Grocery store. 
17. Hardware store. 
18. Hobby, toy store. 
19. Ice cream parlor. 
20. Jewelry store. 
21. Music store. 
22. Notion, variety store. 
23. Office supply, stationery store. 
24. Package liquor store. 
25. Photographic studio. 
26. Shoe store. 
27. Sporting goods store. 



28. Bakery in which nothing is baked except for retail sale on the premises. 
 

(3d) Retail group B.  a. Defined. A use in retail group B is one in which the principal activity is 
the sale or retail of merchandise and in which one or more of the following factors is present, vehicles or 
equipment:. 

(1) Retail group B is differentiated from Retail Group A as follows: 
a. Merchandise is generally larger; 
b. Land area required is generally larger; 
c. 1. Merchandise is of such a nature as to be customarily taken away by the customer in a 

truck.2. Merchandise is of such a nature as to require 50 percent or more of the space 
within the building for storage of the merchandise. 

d. 3. Merchandise is of such a nature as to be stored or customarily displayed outside a 
buildingfully enclosed structure; and. 

e. 4. The success of the activity is not dependent upon the proximity of uses in retail group A 
or other uses in retail group B. 

(2)b. Group uses. The following uses are examples of declared to be in retail group B uses: 
a. 1. Auto, truck sales, motor cycle, off-road, boat, construction equipment and farm 

implement sales, service, leasing and rental;. 
b. 2. Farm implement storeLumber yard and related merchandise, tools and equipment sales, 

including incidental mill work;. 
c. 3. Feed, grain and, farm supply salesstore;. and 
d. 4. Trailer , RV and manufactured home sales and service. 

 
(4e) Service group A.  a. Defined. A use in service group A is one in which the principal activity is the 

servicing of food for consumption on the premises, personal service, household or clothing service, or 
the repair of small equipment and whichproviding a service with accompanying sale of merchandise, 
parts or supplies:. 

(1) Distinguishing characteristics of uses in Service Group A include: 
a. 1. Dependents, to some extent, on the proximity of other retail and service 

establishments;. and 
b. 2. Operations are carried on in such a manner as to produce no offensive noise, dust, odor, 

glare, heat or vibration perceptible or measurable from outside the building in which the 
use is located. 

(2)b. Group uses. The following uses are examples of declared to be in service group A uses: 
a. 1. Barber or beauty shop;. 
b. 2. Beauty shop.3. In shop repair of carry in items; 
c. Refrigerated cold storage lockers.4. Dressmaker, milliner or tailor;. 
d. 5. Dry cleaning, pickup agencylaundry or Laundromat;. 
e. 6. Furniture repair ,or upholstering;. 
f. 7. Laundry pickup agency.8. Self-service laundry.9. Milliner.10. Radio, appliance 

repair.11. Restaurant.12. Shoe repair.13. Soda fountain.14. Watch, jewelry, camera 
repair.15. AnimalPet hospital or clinic;. 

g. 16. Pet store.17. Pet grooming commercial facilityand dog daycare; 
h. Shoe and other leather goods repair; 
i. Private club, lodge hall, union headquarters; and 
k. Undertaking establishment, mortuary or funeral home. 
 



(5f) Service group B.  a. Defined. A use in service group B is one in which the principal activity is 
providing a service with accompanying sale of merchandise, parts or supplies.technical or vocational 
instruction by private organization for profit, repair and service to motor vehicles, not including a filling 
station, and other service uses not necessary in or appropriate to neighborhood commercial districts 
and for which one or more of the following factors is present: 

(1) Service Group B uses are differentiated from Service Group A uses as follows: 
a. 1. Its success is not dependent upon the proximity of other retail or serviceretail group A 

uses;. 
b. 2. Repair or service operations are such as to produce some offensive noise, dust, odor, 

glare, heat or vibration perceptible or measurable from outside the building in which the 
use is located;. and 

c. The use may be conducted around the clock3. The use is one which, if placed on a lot 
adjacent to a lot in an R7 or R3.2 Residential District, would create an unusual safety hazard 
for the lot or other lots in said residential district or would otherwise unduly depreciate the 
value of any lot in said residential district. 

(2)b. Group uses. The following uses are examples of declared to be in service group B uses: 
a. Carwash, either automatic or self-service;1. Auto laundry. 
b. 2. Auto, truck or equipment repair garage;. 
c. Kennel; 
d. Animal hospital or clinic; 
e. Off premise advertising sign; 
f. Taxicab or bus company office with overnight vehicle parking; 
g. 3. Commercial school, including business, secretarial, dancing, music, physical culture, 

technical or trade school.4. Commercial gGarage or, commercial parking lot;. 
h. Self-storage units; and 
i. Mobile cleaning, repair and restoration services. 

5. Steam bath. 
6. Tire, battery repair. 
7. Undertaking establishment. 
8. Outdoor advertising sign. 
 

(6g)  Office-bank group.  a. Defined. A use in the office-bank group is one in which the principal 
activity is the conduct of a commercial, governmental, financial, professional or management 
activitiesfunction. 

(1) The use is generally conducted in a lobby and office type setting mostly during normal weekday 
business hours with customer traffic throughout the day. 

(2)b. Group uses. The following uses are examples of declared to be in the office-bank group uses: 
a. 1. Auto laundry.1. Bank, credit union or financial services company;. 
b. Commercial school including business, secretarial, dancing, music, physical culture, technical 

or trade; 
c. 2. General office.3. Governmental servicesoffice;. 
d. 4. Insurance or real estateoffice;. 
e. Private company; 
f. 5. Personal loan agency.6. Professional servicesoffice;. 
g. TV or radio station broadcast studio; and 
h. 7. Real estate office.8. Taxicab office.9. Telephone exchange.10. Utility 

companyoffice. 
 



(7h) Commercial recreation group.  a. Defined. A use in the commercial recreation group is 
one in which the principal activity is the furnishing of recreation for a profit., and for which one or more 
of the following factors is present: 

(1) Distinguishing characteristics of uses in the Commercial Recreation Group include: 
a. 1. Alcoholic beverages are may be offered for sale for consumption on the premises, but 

not including the incidental sale of alcoholic beverages at a private club classified as a group 
dwelling;. and 

b. 2. The activity is not operated by a governmental agency. 
(2)b. Group uses. The following uses are examples of declared to be in the commercial recreation 

group uses: 
a. 1. Bowling alley;. 
b. 2. Dance hall;. 
c. 3. Pool hall, video game room or billiard parlor;. 
d. 4. Roller or ice -skating rink;. 
e. 5. Sports arena;. 
f. 6. Tavern, saloon, bar;. and 
g. 7. Theater. 

 
(8i) Wholesale group.  a. Defined. A use in the wholesale group is one in which the principal 

activity is the sale of merchandise to individuals and corporations for resale to the public and for which:. 
(1) Distinguishing characteristics of uses in the Wholesale Group include: 

a. 1. The merchandise offered for sale is stored wholly within a completely enclosed building 
that may be fully climate controlled for the products being stored;. 

b. 2. No unusual fire or safety hazard is caused by the storage of the product or 
merchandise;. 

c. 3. No live animals are soldhoused in the facility;. and 
d. 4. No junked, or wrecked automobiles, secondhand equipment, or other salvaged material 

or dead animals are stored or sold on the premises. 
(2) b. Group uses. The following uses are examples of declared to be in the wholesale group uses: 

a. 1. Newspaper, or magazine distributionr;. 
b. 2. Wholesale Ffood, beverage, alcohol and grocery;. 
c. 3. Wholesale Ddrugs; sales. 
d. Office products and supplies; 
e. Cleaning products and supplies; 
f. Electrical equipment and parts; 
g. Furniture, appliances and home furnishings; 
h. Paper or plastic products; 
i. Pumps, pipe and associated parts; and 
j. Vehicle parts and tires. 
 

(9j) Health-medical group.a. Defined.  A use in the health-medical group is one in which the principal 
activity is related to the care and medical treatment of human beings. 

(1) Facilities include anything up to and including a full service hospital with all support functions 
including emergency medical transportation. 

(2)b. Group uses. The following uses are examples ofdeclared to be in the health-medical group 
uses: 

a1. Hospital for human beings licensed under N.D.C.C. ch. 23-16;. 
b2. Medical clinic or urgent care facility.; 



c3. Nursing home licensed by the department of health under N.D.C.C. ch. 23-16.; 
d4. Basic care facility licensed by the department of health under N.D.C.C. ch. 23-09.3. 
e. A and assisted living facility registered with the department of human services;. 
5. Orphan's home.f6. Sanitarium, chiropractic hospital or hospital for unmarried mothers 

maintained and operatedor similar  by the department of human services.7. Ttreatment 
facility licensed by the department of human services. 

 
(10k) Education group.a. Defined.  A use in the education group is one in which the principal 

activity is the education of children or adults by a public or private nonprofit agency.  Sports activities 
linked to an educational entity are included. 

(1) The activity can be directed at any age group and be operated by a public, private or religious 
group. 

(2)b. Group uses. The following uses are declared to be in theexamples of education group uses: 
a1. Pre-school; 
b. College or junior college;. 
c2. Grade school;. 
d3. High school or junior middlehigh school;. 
e4. Kindergarten;. 
f5. Private or parochial schools offering a curriculum substantially equivalent to that offered by 

public schools;. 
g6. Student or faculty dormitory on college campus;. 
h7. Stadium, gymnasium or, field house, as an accessory building on the same lot as a principal 

building;. 
8i. Power or heating plant as an accessory building and used on the same lot as a 

principalUtility or maintenance service building;. 
j. Administrative building; and 
k. Athletic field. 
 

 
(11l) Public recreation group.a.  Defined. A use in the public recreation group is one in which the 

principal activity is public recreation and which is carried on by a governmental agency. 
(1) The activity may be similar to a use in the commercial recreation group.  Alcoholic beverages 

may be offered for sale for consumption on the premises. 
(2)b. Group uses. The following uses are declared to be in the public recreation group uses: 

a1. Community center or sports complex;. 
b2. Municipal gGolf courses;. 
c3. Public mMuseum;. 
d4. Public park;. 
e5. Public playground;. and 
f6. Municipal Sswimming pool. 
 

(12m) General farming group. a. Defined. A use in the general farming group is one which is 
customarily carried on in nonurban areas. It is the intent of this chapter to permit as an integral part of 
any particular use in the general farming group all customary accessory buildings for breeding and 
rearing poultry and livestock and for the storage of feed and farm crops.  Provided that Oon any parcel 
of land lying within the territorial jurisdiction of the city for zoning regulations the conduct of any dairy, 
fur farming or farrowing operation, poultry hatchery, poultry farming or feeding or a riding stable shall 
not be conducted within 2,640 feet of any residential district or, CA or CB Ccommercial Ddistrict, and the 



raising and feeding of any livestock and horses within 2,640 feet of any residential district or, a CA or CB 
Ccommercial Ddistrict shall be limited to one animal per eight acres of land. 

(1) b. Group uses. The following Uuses are declared to be in the general farming group include: 
a. 1. Dairy farming;. 
b. 2. Fur farming;. 
c. 3. Commercial greenhouse;. 
d. 4. Livestock raising or, feeding;. 
e. 5. Farrowing operation;. 
f. 6. Poultry hatchery;. 
g. 7. Poultry farming, or feeding;. and 
h. 8. Riding stable. 

 Provided that on any parcel of land lying within the territorial jurisdiction of the city for zoning 
regulations the conduct of any dairy, fur farming or farrowing operation, poultry hatchery, poultry 
farming or feeding or a riding stable shall not be conducted within 2,640 feet of any residential, CA or CB 
Commercial District, and the raising and feeding of any livestock and horses within 2,640 feet of any 
residential, CA or CB Commercial District shall be limited to one animal per eight acres of land. 
 

(13n) Truck farming group.  a. Defined. A use in the truck farming group is an agricultural use 
normally found in suburban or rural areas but on which poultry and livestock rearing is prohibited 
except as noted in subsection (13)b of this section. 

(1) b. Group uses. The following uUses are declared to be in the truck farming group include: 
a. 1. Field crop farming;. 
b. 2. Commercial flower growing;. 
c. 3. Fruit growing;. 
d. 4. Tree, shrub or, plant nursery;. 
e. 5. Truck gardening;. 
f. 6. The rearing and feeding of poultry, provided that on any parcel of land lying within the 

territorial jurisdiction of the city for zoning regulations in the raising and feeding of poultry 
shall not be conducted within 660 feet of any residential district or, a CA and or CB 
cCommercial dDistrict. 

 
(14o) Industrial group A.  a. Defined. A use in industrial group A is one involving manufacturing 

or the storage and sale of heavy building materials or equipment. 
(1) Uses must and which conforms to the following requirements: 

a1. There is no unusual fire, explosion or safety hazard;. 
b2. There is no production of noise at any boundary of this district in which such use is located 

in excess of the average intensity of street and traffic noise at that point;. 
c3. There is no emission of smoke in excess of any density described as No. 1 as measured by a 

standard Ringlemann Chart as prepared by the United States Bureau of Mines; provided, 
however, that smoke of a density not in excess of No. 2 on a Ringlemann Chart will be 
permitted for a period not in excess of four minutes in any 30-minute period;. 

d4. There is no emission of dust, dirt, or toxic or offensive odors or gas;. and 
e5. There is no production of heat or glare perceptible from any lot line of the premises on 

which the use is located. 
(2)b. Group uses. The following uUses are declared to be in the industrial group A include; 

provided, however, that if any of the following uses, being established subsequent to the 
adoption of this chapter, is operated or changed so that said use does not comply with the 
standards for an industrial group A use, and said use as operated or changed would not be 



permitted as a new use in the district in which it is located, then such use shall be declared in 
violation of this chapter: 
a1. Manufacture, compounding, processing, packaging, treatment, or assembly of the following 

materials and products, but excluding the use in any operation of a punch press over 20 tons 
rated capacity, a drop hammer, or an automatic screw machine,: 
1.(i) Bakery goods, candy, cosmetics, dairy products, drugs, perfumes, pharmaceuticals, and 

food products, except fish and meat products, sauerkraut, vinegar, yeast and the 
rendering or refining of fats and oils,. 

2.(ii) Products from the previously prepared materials: bone, cellophane, canvas, cloth, 
cork, feathers, felt, fiber, precious metals or stones, fur, glass, hair, horn, leather, paper, 
plastics, shell, textiles, wood, excluding planing mills, and yarns,. 

3.(iii) Pottery and other ceramic products, using only previously pulverized clay, and kilns 
fired only by electricity or gas,. 

4.(iv) Electric and neon signs, outdoor advertising signs, commercial advertising structures 
and light sheet metal products, including heating and ventilating ducts and equipment, 
cornices, eaves and similar products., 

5.(v) Musical instruments, toys, novelties and rubber and metal stamps., 
6.(vi) Blacksmith shop and machine shop., 
7.(vii) Laundry, cleaning and dyeing works and carpet and rug cleaning., 
8.(viii) Ice manufacturing plant and soft-drink bottling plant., and 
9.(ix) Assembly of electric appliances, electronic instruments and devices, radios, 

phonographs and television sets, including the manufacture of small parts only, such as 
coils, condensers, transformers, crystal holders and similar products.; 

b2. Storage building and warehouse.3. Experimental laboratories;. 
c4. The following uses, when conducted wholly within a completely enclosed building, or within 

an area enclosed on all sides with a solid wall, compact hedge or uniformly painted board 
fence, not less than six feet in height,: 
1.(i) Building material sales yard, including the sale of rock, sand, gravel and the like as an 

incidental part of the principal use, but excluding concrete mixing,. 
2.(ii) Contractor's equipment storage yard or plant or rental of equipment commonly 

used by contractors,. 
3.(iii) Retail lumber yard, including only incidental mill work.(iv) Feed and fuel yard,. 
4.(v) Public utility service yard or electrical receiving or transforming station,. and 
5.(vi) Pipe yard or storage, sale or rental of oil and gas well-drilling equipment. 

 
(15p) Industrial group B.a. Defined. A use in industrial group B is one involving manufacturing 

or the storage, sale of products and material and in which the operations create a greater degree of 
hazard or more annoyance than the operations of uses in industrial group A. 

(1) Uses in industrial group B must, but which conforms to the following requirements: 
a1. The design and the operation of the building, and design and use of the premises, fully 

comply with all special requirements established by this article.; 
b2. There is no emission of smoke in excess of a density described as No. 2 as measured by a 

standard Ringlemann Chart as prepared by the United States Bureau of Mines; provided, 
however, that smoke of a density not in excess of No. 3 on a Ringlemann Chart will be 
permitted for a period not in excess of four minutes in any 30-minute period.; 

c3. There is no emission of toxic gases or fumes.; and 
d4. There is no production of heat or glare perceptible from any lot line of the premises on 

which the use is located. 



(2)b. Group uses. The following uUses are declared to be in the industrial group B include; 
provided, however, that if any of the following uses, being established subsequent to the 
adoption of the ordinance from which this section is derived, is operated or changed so that said 
use does not comply with the standards for an industrial group B use, and said use as operated 
or changed would not be permitted as a new use in the district in which it is located, then such 
use shall be declared in violation of this article: 
a1. Any use listed in industrial group A and involving the use of punch press over 20 tons rated 

capacity, a drop hammer, or an automatic screw machine, provided that all other 
requirements for industrial group B uses are complied with.; 

b2. Any other use listed under industrial group A which cannot comply with the requirements of 
an industrial group A use, provided that all requirements for an industrial group B use are 
complied with.; and 

c3. Manufacture, compounding, processing, refining and treatment of the following material 
and products,: 
1.(i) Acetylene., 
2.(ii) Alcohol., 
3.(iii) Asphalt., 
4.(iv) Brick, tile or terracotta., 
(5.v) Concrete products or mixing., 
(6.vi) Electric steam power plant., 
(7.vii) Lampblack., 
(8.viii) Oilcloth or linoleum., 
(9.ix) Paint, shellac, turpentine, lacquer or varnish., 
(10.x) Paper or pulp., 
(11.xi) Petroleum products., 
(12.xii) Plastics., 
(13.xiii) Beer, whiskey or alcoholic beverages., 
(14.xiv) Stove or shoe polish., and 
(15.xv) Tar or tar products.; 

d4. Junkyard, provided that all operations are conducted wholly within an enclosed building or 
within an area enclosed on all sides with a solid wall, compact evergreen hedge or uniformly 
painted fence, not less than six feet in height; provided, further, that there shall be no 
burning of wrecked automobiles or other products except within a furnace or incinerator 
approved by the city engineer of the city.; 

e5. Any of the following uses, provided that it shall be located not closer than 500 feet from any 
zone in which it is prohibited,: 
1.(i) Cement, lime, gypsum, or plaster of Paris manufacturing., 
(2.ii) Distillation of bones., 
(3.iii) Drop-forge industry, manufacturing of forging with power hammer., 
(4.iv) Fat rendering, except as an incidental use., 
(5.v) Fertilizer manufacturing., 
(6.vi) Garbage, offal, or dead animal reduction., 
(7.vii) Gas manufacture., 
(8.viii) Petroleum refining., 
(9.ix) Smelting of tin, copper, zinc or iron ores., 
(10.x) Soap manufacture., 
(11.xi) Stockyards or feeding pens., 
(12.xii) Slaughter and packing of animals and meat products., and 



(13.xiii) Tannery or curing or storage of raw hides.; 
f6. Bulk storage of petroleum and petroleum products. 

 
(16q) Utility service group.  a. Defined. A use in the utility service group is one necessary for the 

safe or efficient operation of a telecommunications, gas, water or electric, refuse, storm sewer utility or 
sanitary sewage system for the benefit of the public and is one for which the following factors are 
present.: 

(1). The distinguishing characteristics of utility service group uses are: 
a. The structure or use is necessary for the safe or efficient operation of the utility;. 
b2. The utility which the structure or use serves is one available to the general public;. 
c3. The design and location of the premises and structure is in full compliance with all 

requirements of this section and of this chapter;. 
d4. The use is located on a lot no smaller in area than the minimum area specified in the district 

in which it is located for any principal use.5. The use complies with all height and yard 
regulations for the district in which it is located;. 

e6. Except for electrical distribution installations, wWherever the lot on which the use is located 
adjoins a lot in a residential district, there is planted and maintained a landscaped screen 
planting strip no less than five feet in width adjacent to all lot boundaries so adjoining a lot 
in a residential district;. 

f7. Proper fencing with lot entrances shall be erected at least six feet high and maintained 
around all installations and structures in which there is any safety hazard whatsoever for 
children, provided that all structures shall be so located that such safety fence shall be so 
placed as not to encroach on any front yard required in the district in which the use is 
located;. and 

g8. For the proper operation of the utility, it is necessary that the proposed use be located on, 
or within a short distance of, the site on which it is proposed to be located. 

(2)b. Group uses. The following uses are declared to be in theexamples of utility service group 
uses: 
a. Telecommunication transmission tower; 
b1. Electric transformer station, but not a steam-generating plant.; 
c2. Electric transmission line;. 
d3. Sewage pumping station;. 
e4. Water pumping station;. 
f5. Water reservoir;. 
g. Gas pressure regulator station; 
h. Solid waste recycling center; 
i. Stormwater detention facility; and 
j. Stormwater pumping station. 

 
Sec. 105-1-5. Special uses. 
 

(a) GenerallyPurpose. In order to carry out the purposes of this articlechapter, the board of city 
commissioners finds it necessary to require that certain uses, because of unusual size, safety hazards, 
infrequent occurrence, effect on surrounding area or other reasons, be reviewed by the planning and 
zoning commissionboard of adjustment prior to the granting of a building permit or certificate of 
occupancy therefor; and that the board of adjustment is given limited discretionary powers relating to 
the grant of such permit or certificateboard voting on whether or not to approve the use at a specific 
site. 



(b) Application submittal.  An application for a special use shall be submitted to the city planner.  
Whenever possible, applications should be submitted electronically. 

(1c) General provisions.  a. The uses listed in this section are conditional uses that require increased 
investigation before considering approvaldesignated as special uses, and no building permit or 
certificate of occupancy shall be issued by the building inspector until the application for such permit or 
certificate has been reviewed and authorized by the board of adjustment. 

(1b.) The planning and zoning commission must conduct board of adjustment shall not authorize 
the issuance of a building permit or certificate of occupancy until the application therefor has 
appeared at a public hearing on such application, notice of the time and place of which hearing 
has been given in a newspaper of general circulation in the city at least ten days prior to the 
date of such hearing. 

(2) Notices must be mailed at least ten days prior to the hearing to all property owners within 500 
feet of the boundary of the proposed project. 

(3) In order to give a favorable recommendation, the planning and zoning commission must 
consider the followingc. Before approving the issuance of a building permit or certificate of 
occupancy for a special use, the board of adjustment shall find: 
a1. The proposed use is in harmony with the purpose and intent of this article chapter; 
b. The proposed use is not in conflict withand any portion of the master adopted 

comprehensive plan of the city; for the district. 
c2. The proposed use will not adversely affect the health and safety of the public and the 

workers and residents in the area; 
d. The proposed use, and will not be detrimental to the use or development of adjacent 

properties or of the general surrounding neighborhood;. and 
e3. The proposed use will comply withmeets all appropriate regulations for the district in which 

it will be located. 
(4) The planning and zoning commission may require the submission of additional plans, special 

studies or reports during review of the application. 
(54.) The planning and zoning commission may recommend proposed use will comply with all 

special requirements for the proposed useregulations established by this section and all special 
conditions necessary for the safety and general welfare of the public.  The reasons for the 
special requirements must be documented. 

(6) Once the planning and zoning commission has acted, the city commission must hold a public 
hearing and then act to ratify the recommendation of the planning commission, modify the 
recommendation of the planning commission or reject the application. 

d. The board of adjustment shall be authorized to impose any condition on the grant of a building 
permit or certificate of occupancy for a special use as it deems necessary for the protection of the 
neighborhood and the general welfare of the public. 
e. The board of adjustment shall not authorize the location of a special use in any district from which it 
is prohibited. 
f. The board of adjustment shall refuse to authorize the issuance of a building permit or certificate of 
occupancy for any special use if the board finds that such special use would fail to comply with any of 
the requirements of this chapter. 
g. The board of adjustment shall require the applicant for authorization of a special use to furnish any 
engineering drawings or specifications, site plans, operating plans or any other data the board finds 
necessary to appraise the need for or effect of such special use. 

(2d) Airports and heliports. An airport or heliport may be permitted as a special use in an A 
Agricultural District in the extraterritorial zone and a heliport may be permitted as a special use 
associated with a medical facility within the zoning jurisdiction of the cityas a special use, provided that: 



(1a.) The area shall beis sufficient to meet the federal requirements for the class of airport or 
heliport proposed;. 

(2b.) There are no existing flight obstructions, such as towers, chimneys, or other tall structures, 
or natural obstructions outside the boundaries of the proposed airport or heliport, which would 
fall within the approach zone to any of the proposed runways or landing strips of the airport or 
heliport;. 

(3c.) There is sufficient distance between the end of each useable landing strip and the airport 
boundary to satisfy the requirements of the civil aeronauticsfederal aviation administration or 
any other appropriate authority. In cases where air rights or easements have been acquired 
from the owners of abutting properties, in which approach zones may fall, satisfactory evidence 
thereof shall be submitted with the application;. 

(4d.) Any buildings, hangars, or other structures shall be at least 100 feet from any street or lot 
linesproperty boundary;. 

(5e.) Adequate space for off-street parking of at least 50 vehicles has been provided.  A traffic 
study must be submitted to document the need for the number of spaces proposedIf, in the 
opinion of the board of adjustment, off-street parking space for more than 50 vehicles will be 
required, the board shall increase this requirement;. and 

(6f.) The application for authorization of an airport or heliport shall be accompanied by a  plans, 
drawn to scale meeting the requirements of the FAA, other regulatory agencies and the city, 
showing:1. The proposed location of the airport. 
2. Boundary lines. 
3. Dimensions. 
4. Names of owners of abutting properties. 
5. Proposed layout of runways, landing strips or areas. 
6. Taxi strips. 
7. Aprons. 
8. Roads. 
9. Parking areas. 
10. Hangars, buildings; and other structures and facilities. 
11. The location and height of all buildings, structures, trees, and overhead wires falling within the 

airport approach zone and less than 500 feet distant from the boundary lines of the airport; 
12. Other pertinent data, such as topography and grading plan, drainage, water and sewage, etc. 
g. The plans for the proposed airport have been reviewed by the city planning and zoning 

commission. In its approval of the proposed airport, the city planning and zoning commission 
shall make at least the following two findings: 
1. The airport is not in conflict with any existing element of a master plan; and 
2. The benefits of and need for the airport are greater than the depreciating effects and 

damages to the neighboring property. 
 
(3e) Cemetery. A cemetery, mausoleum, columbarium or crematory may be permitted in an 

industrial or A district as a special use, provided that: 
(1a. The necessity or desirability of the establishment of such cemetery has been affirmatively 

determined by the board of health, and the city commission has approved the location of such 
proposed cemetery.b.) No graves shall be located less than 100 feet distant from any property 
line;. 

(2c.) In any cemetery in which there will be permitted monuments and grave markers rising 
above the surface of the grounds, tThere shall be a strip at least 75 feet in width adjacent to all 
boundaries of the cemetery landscaped and maintained as a green area; 



(3) In any cemetery in which there will be permitted monuments and grave markers rising above 
the surface of the ground,, that as a portion of the landscaped green area there shall includebe 
a dense evergreen hedge at least six feet in height; and, and that such dense evergreen hedges 
shall be at least 70 feet distant from any boundary of the cemetery which is a street line. 

(4d. In any cemetery in which markers or monuments rising above the surface of the ground, and 
private tombs or mausoleums, are prohibited, there shall be planted and maintained a 
landscaped strip at least 75 feet in depth adjacent to all boundaries of the cemetery, but there 
need not be a dense hedge planted as part of the landscaping.e.) No public mausoleum, 
columbarium, crematory or cemetery chapel shall be erected within 200 feet of any boundary of 
the lot or parcel on which it is located. 

 f. The owners of any cemetery parcel which lies across any proposed major or secondary 
thoroughfare shown on a master plan of the city shall reserve and dedicate a right-of-way for 
such thoroughfare having a minimum width of 100 feet, or such greater minimum width as the 
city engineer shall determine necessary, in fee simple to the city for highway purposes, and 
those portions of said cemetery lying on either side of such dedicated thoroughfare shall be 
considered as separate cemeteries for the purpose of determining grave setbacks, landscaped 
strips and building setbacks. 

 (4) Churches or other places of worship. But not including funeral or mortuary chapel. 
(5) Drive-in theater. A drive-in theater may be permitted in an A or MB district as a special use, provided 
that: 
a. No part of such theater shall be located closer to the boundary of any residential district than 1,000 
feet, or closer to any highway or adjoining property line than 50 feet. 
b. The area accessible to patrons' vehicles shall be treated with a suitable material to prevent dust. 
c. Reservoir parking space, off the street, shall be provided for patrons awaiting admission in an 
amount not less than 30 percent of the vehicular capacity of the theater. 
d. The vehicular circulation shall be so designed and constructed as to permit only one-way traffic 
within the boundaries of the tract on which the theater is to be located. 
e. Ingress and egress from the highway shall be so designed and constructed as to provide for safe 
traffic movement. 
f. The screen shall be so located and shielded that the picture shown shall be invisible from any 
highway. 
g. A structure for the sale and service of food and nonalcoholic beverages may be permitted as an 
accessory use for a drive-in theater. 
 

(6f) Golf driving range or, miniature golf course. A golf driving range or miniature golf course may be 
permitted in an A or MB industrial district as a special use, provided that: 

(1a.) The area within 500 feet of all boundaries of the lot is not developed in residences to a 
greater density than one family per acre;. 

(2b.) Any flood-lights used to illuminate the premises are so directed and shielded as to prevent 
the direct lighting area from extending beyond the property boundarynot to be an annoyance to 
any developed residential property;. 

(3c.) When the area within 500 feet of the property boundary is undeveloped, any approval is 
limited to one year The board of adjustment shall grant only a temporary certificate of 
occupancy for a period not to exceed one year and must be renewed annually, which certificate 
may be renewed at the expiration of each temporary certificate of occupancy for an additional 
year, provided residential development adjoining the golf driving range or miniature golf course 
has not exceeded the required density and provided any other standards established by this 
chapter or special conditions imposed by the board of adjustment have been fully complied 



with.  If residential development exceeding a density of one dwelling unit per acre is approved 
within this 500 foot area, the approval for this use may be withdrawn unless all property owners 
within the 500 foot area sign written consents to allow the use to continue on a year to year 
basis. 

 
 (7) Temporary uses. The board of adjustment is authorized to grant certificate of occupancy for 
temporary uses as follows: 
a. For a carnival or circus in an A, A-20, MA or MB district for a period not to exceed 21 days. 
b. For a religious meeting in a tent or other temporary structure in a CB, MA, MB or A district for a 
period not to exceed 60 days. 
c. For the open-lot sale of Christmas trees in a CA, CB, CC, MA, MB or A district for a period not to 
exceed 45 days. 
d. For a real estate sales office in any district for a period not to exceed one year, provided that no 
cooking or sleeping accommodations are included in the structure; provided, further, that the 
temporary permit for such real estate sales office may be renewed for an additional period, not to 
exceed one year at each renewal. 
e. Contractors' office and equipment sheds in any district for a period not to exceed two years; 
provided, further, that such temporary certificate may be renewed for additional periods of one year. 
(8) Trailer courts. A mobile home court or trailer camp may be permitted in an A district as a special 
use, provided that: 
a. The minimum total area of the premises shall be 90,000 square feet. 
b. The minimum unit area of premises used or occupied by each trailer shall be 2,000 square feet, 
clearly defined on the ground by stakes, posts, or other markers, except that where a separate parking 
area is provided on the trailer camp lot for motor vehicles and no motor vehicles are parked on the 
trailer unit area, then the minimum unit area of the premises used or occupied by each trailer shall be 
1,500 feet. 
c. The minimum lane or driveway on which each individual trailer fronts shall be 20 feet in width 
surfaced with a dustproof all-weather surface, and giving an unobstructed access to a public street or 
highway. 
d. No trailer shall be placed closer than 20 feet to any other trailer, closer than 30 feet to the right-of-
way line of any street, or closer than ten feet to any other boundary of the trailer camp. 
e. All entrances, exits, lanes and driveways between rows of trailers used or occupied in any trailer 
camp shall be lighted by electricity. At least 150 watt light shall be provided for each 50 lineal feet of 
lane or driveway. 
f. No business shall be conducted in any trailer in a trailer camp. 
g. Every trailer camp shall have erected, around its border, suitable woven wire or open metal fence 
not less than four feet nor more than five feet in height, having only necessary openings for ingress and 
egress to a public street, highway or alley. Barbed wire shall not be used in the construction of any 
fence. 
h. All provisions for water supply, laundry, sewage and fire protection to be provided in any trailer 
camp shall have been approved by the appropriate city, county, or state officer or agency. 
i. An adequate area for a playground is provided. 
 

(9g) Fire stationsor emergency medical response. A facility providing fire and/or emergency medical 
response services fire station may be permitted in any residential or commercial zoning district as a 
special use, provided that: 



(1a.) Ingress and egress from the street shall be so designed and constructed as to provide safe 
traffic movement.  A demand activated traffic control signal for emergency vehicle egress from 
the site may be required. 

(2b.) Sufficient parking shall be provided to accommodate the maximum number of personnel 
per shift plus at least 2 visitor spaces; andThe minimum area of the premises shall be not less 
than 14,000 square feet, and the building shall not occupy more than 30 percent of the total lot 
area. 

c. All regulations with respect to front, side and rear yards and building height restrictions shall 
comply with the requirements applicable within the zoning district in which such fire station is 
to be constructed. 

d. The lot shall be screened by appropriate plantings and/or fences approved by the architectural 
advisory committee, provided that no fencing or planting shall be installed between the front of 
the structure and the front lot line. 

(3) If the use is approved, landscaping, signage and design of the building exterior shall be reviewed 
and approved by the Mandan Architectural Review Commissione. The architectural design of 
the exterior and interior of the building shall be approved by the architectural advisory 
committee. 

f. In addition to the requirements for off-street parking provided elsewhere in this chapter, an 
additional space shall be provided for each full-time employee stationed at such location. 

(10h) Child Day care centers.  A a. Classification.1. Any private group care facility housing more 
than 12 children will be classified as a child day care center.2. Any private group care facility housing 
12 or less children will be classified as a home occupation use.b. Home occupation uses will comply with 
the requirements specified elsewhere in this chapter.c. Under this subsection, child day care center is a 
facility providing services to more than 12 children or any number of adults.  A day care center will 
requires a special use permit approval and must comply with the following criteria: 

(1) The facility must receive state approval before an occupancy permit can be issued; 
(21. The child day care center has been duly licensed as required by law. 
2. All owners of property within 300 feet are notified of the public hearing. 
3. Minimum lot size shall be not less than 7,000 square feet. 
4.) For a facility catering to children, eEach building shall provide not less than 35 square feet of 

interior play area per child;. Interior play area shall be defined according to rules and regulations 
for child day care centers adopted by North Dakota Social Service Board. 

(35.) For a facility catering to children,Each lot shall provide an fenced outdoor play area of not 
less than 75 square feet per child shall be provided that is located no closer than ten feet to an 
adjoining residential lot;. The play area shall be fenced and located in the rear yard of the 
premises and behind the building setback requirement when the building is located on a corner 
lot. A buffer zone of ten feet shall be provided on the play areas adjoining residential lots. 

(46.) For a facility catering to adults, there shall be an outdoor lawn area and covered porch 
offering either active recreation or passive activities for groups or individuals; 

The facility must have access to public water and sewer systems. 
(57.) As a minimum, onsite Off-street parking shall be provided at the following ratio of: Oone 

space per manager and employee per shift for each two employees plusand one space for each 
12 children clientsor major fraction; and. 

(68.) Drop off and pickup of clients shall be in an area off the public street that is separate from 
parking spacesA traffic flow plan must be submitted indicating traffic circulation, child delivery 
points, child pickup points and off-street parking. 



9. The special use permit shall designate a maximum number of children considering the criteria listed 
in subsection (10)c.1 through (10)c.8 of this section and location of facility, type of construction, 
principal use of the building and effect on surrounding property. 
10. Child day care center owners must provide proof the center has been licensed according to state law 
and in compliance with Mandan's Life Safety Code. 

d. After due notice and hearing with respect thereto, a child day care center may be permitted in 
all zoning districts as a special use. 

(11i) Correctional facility. Notwithstanding anything in this chapter to the contrary, Aa 
correctional facility shall may be permitted only in an CC Commercial District or MA iIndustrial or A 
dDistrict as a special use, provided that: 

(1) The facility fronts on an arterial street; 
(2) There are no churches, schools or residentially developed property within 500 feet;a. The 

correctional facility is located no closer than 300 feet from any preexisting church, school or 
property zoned residential and/or property used for residential purposes. 

(3) The primary illumination field for exterior lighting shall not extend beyond the property 
boundary;b. Any flood lights used to illuminate the premises are so directed and shielded as 
not to be an annoyance to any developed residential property. 

(4c.) The setback for anyNo building shall be closernot less than 35 feet from to any lot property 
line; and. 

(5d.) As a minimum, onsiteOff-street parking shall be provided at the followinga ratio of: oOne 
space for each two employees per shift plusand one space for eachper four inmates. Any use of 
barb wire for perimeter fencing shall conform to any restrictions within this chapter. 

 

 (j) Drug or alcohol outpatient treatment or counseling facility.  A drug or alcohol outpatient 
treatment or counseling facility may be permitted as a special use in a regional commercial, industrial or 
A district and must comply with the following criteria: 

(1) The facility fronts on an arterial street; 
(2) As a minimum, onsite parking shall be provided at a ratio of one space for each employee per 

shift plus one space per two clients per hour; 
(3) Hours of operation are limited to between 6:00 AM and 8:00 PM; 
(4) The facility is no closer than 1000 feet to a school, daycare facility or residentially developed 

property; and 
(5) The facility is no closer than 500 feet to an establishment selling alcohol. 

 

 
 
 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a recommendation by the Mandan Growth Fund 

(MGF) Committee regarding an application for an interest buy-down for BBCS 

Properties, LLC, which will lease to Prairie Rose Dentists. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  At an Oct. 14, 2015, meeting, the MGF reviewed 

an application for an interest buy-down of permanent financing for a new 9,300 square-

foot building to eventually accommodate up to five dentists and ancillary staff. The buy-

down is through the Bank of North Dakota (BND) Flex PACE program. The applicant is 

seeking the maximum buy-down amount of $153,846. The Bank of North Dakota will 

provide 65 percent or $100,000 of the amount, with the local community required to 

provide 35 percent or $53,846. The buy-down is on a principal amount of $1.375 million. 

The total project investment is estimated at $3.55 million. 

 

Prairie Rose Dentists currently has two Bismarck locations, so this will be a business 

expansion. The new clinic will be constructed on Overlook Lane, near the intersection of 

Sunset Drive and Old Red Trail. They plan to operate the clinic Mondays through Fridays 

and initially will have two dentists, one being a pediatric dentist, plus 12 additional staff. 

They expect to add a third dentist by the third year and indicate the clinic will ultimately 

accommodate 35 employees. Dr. Casey Carlson explained to the Growth Fund 

Committee that the American Dentistry Association indicates a ratio of approximately 

2,000 patients per dentist. With Mandan’s population at 20,820 and four dentists 

currently in the community, there would appear to be considerable opportunity to retain 

more of this business in Mandan. 

ATTACHMENTS:   Application available upon request. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 15, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development and Communications 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: MGF Recommendation for Interest Buy-Down for 

BBCS Properties, LLC (Prairie Rose Dentists) 

 

 

  

New Business No. 5i  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Recommendation for Interest Buy-Down for BBSC Properties 

Page 2 of 3 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The Growth Fund unencumbered balance is $340,445. If this 

application for $53,846 is approved, the new balance would be $286,599. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  City Attorney Malcolm Brown was in attendance at the MGF 

meeting for the review and consideration of the application. The Lewis and Clark 

Regional Development Council and the City of Mandan have an agreement for 

origination and servicing of loans for the local share of interest buy-downs. 

  

The applicant will need to enter into a business incentive agreement with the Bank of 

North Dakota and City of Mandan and will need to submit an annual jobs verification 

report for five years after receipt of the interest buy-down. An automatic door is also 

required. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The MGF voted 7-0 to recommend approval of the interest buy-

down for the applicant with a local match of $53,846 to be structured as an unsecured 

loan repayable within 4 years after the 4-year buy-down period with a 3 percent interest 

rate to begin accruing at the start of the loan with all loan origination and filing fees paid 

by the borrower. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the interest buy-down for BBCS Properties, 

LLC with Prairie Rose Dentists as the operating company for its new building with the 

local match of $53,846 to be structured as a loan with the terms and rate as 

recommended. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Recommendation for Interest Buy-Down for BBSC Properties 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a recommendation by the Mandan Growth Fund 

(MGF) Committee regarding an application by for storefront improvement matching 

funds for 111 Fifth Avenue NE. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The MGF met Oct. 14, 2015, to consider the 

application. Kevin Cavanaugh has a five-year lease of the building at 111 Fifth Avenue 

NE, a property owned by Cliff Berger. Cavanaugh plans to use the building for an 

expansion of his existing business, Bearscat Bakehouse. He is planning to add signage to 

the building in the form of raised lettering on both the east and north facing sides to cover 

holes in the building from similar lettering for a previous business. The project 

application also includes replacement of glass in a door and, as required by a local 

ordinance, installation of an automatic door opener. The total estimated cost of the project 

was $7,524.  

 

The Mandan Architectural Review Commission considered the plan at its Oct. 13 

meeting and approved of it provided a component be added for landscaping of a corner 

boulevard area on the east side of the building where there were previously trees and that 

now has one or more stumps and weeds. The applicant had not yet been able to obtain a 

cost estimate for the work, so the MGF Committee voted to recommend approval of the 

project with an added allowance of $2,000 in matching funds for landscaping to meet the 

MARC requirement. This put the maximum for recommended matching funds at $5,762. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Storefront application 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 16, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development and Communications 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: MGF Recommendation on Storefront 

Improvement Application for 111 5
th

 Ave NE 

 

  

New Business No. 5ii  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Storefront Improvement Application Recommendation 

Page 2 of 8 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Up to $5,762 in matching funds at a 50% match rate subject to actual 

final investment in qualified exterior improvements. The uncommitted balance in the 

Growth Fund for the Downtown Storefront Improvement program is $18,567. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  An automatic door is included in the proposal as required. There’s 

also a recipient agreement that calls for a notice of potential lien on the property 

following project completion and issuance of matching funds in the form of a forgivable 

loan. The notice of potential lien requires that the building and improvements remain 

intact for 3 years with funding forgiven on a prorated basis over those three years. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The MGF voted 7-0 with two members absent to recommend 

approval of the application by Bearscat Bakehouse for storefront funds at a 50% match 

rate up to $5,762.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the storefront improvement application by 

Bearscat Bakehouse at a 50% match rate to the actual investment, for up to $5,762 in 

matching funds, to be provided as a forgivable loan upon project completion.  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Storefront Improvement Application Recommendation 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Storefront Improvement Application Recommendation 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Storefront Improvement Application Recommendation 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Storefront Improvement Application Recommendation 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Storefront Improvement Application Recommendation 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Storefront Improvement Application Recommendation 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a recommendation by the Mandan Growth Fund 

(MGF) Committee regarding an application for a Retail and Restaurant Incentive by 

PHAT Brothers Bakery, Inc. (dba Bearscat Bakehouse) for a location at 111 Fifth Avenue 

NE. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The MGF met Oct. 14, 2015, to review the 

application by Bearscat Bakehouse for a Mandan location at 111 Fifth Avenue NW. 

Owner Kevin Cavanaugh applied for a retail and restaurant incentive of $5 per square 

foot for the building’s 3,500 sf. 

 

The purpose of this program is to serve as a catalyst for securing new retail, restaurant 

and service concepts to fill vacant properties and stimulate new construction by providing 

financial assistance to qualified applicants. 

 

Bearscat Bakehouse specializes in donuts. Other products include caramel rolls, cookies, 

popcorn and seasonal goods including a Tom and Jerry mix and ice cream trucks in the 

summer. Cavanaugh plans operating hours of Tuesday through Saturday. The Mandan 

location will have a room for birthday parties and other events where children can 

decorate their own donuts. He estimates his start-up costs at $100,000 (not including any 

additional ice cream trucks). Monthly rent is $1,700 for an annualized rate of $5.83 psf.  

 

Use of public incentives is among criteria considered by the MGF Committee. Cavanaugh 

has also applied for the Storefront Improvement program for the location, with a 

committee recommendation for up to $5,762 in matching funds in the form of a 

forgivable loan.  The ratio of public to private support is estimated at 6% without any 

retail/restaurant incentive.   

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 15, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development and Communications 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: MGF Recommendation on Retail & Restaurant 

Incentive Application for Bearscat Bakehouse 

 

  

New Business No. 5iii  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Recommendation for Retail & Restaurant Incentive Application 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

The MGF committee considered the use of the building’s 3,500 sf and determined that 

1,500 sf of garage/shop space should be deducted from the equation for determining the 

incentive because it will be used to park two ice cream trucks and for freezer space. 

 

The rating system for the Retail and Restaurant Incentive Program has 13 different 

criteria. The average rating by seven of nine MGF members present at the meeting was a 

3.2 on a scale of 1 to 5 with 5 being the highest. This score warrants an incentive at three-

fourths of the maximum $5-per-square-foot-rate, equal to $3.75 psf. 

 

Mandan Growth Fund - Retail & Restaurant Incentive Program 

Application Evaluation - Tabulation Form 

         
Criteria GF1 GF2 GF3 GF4 GF5 GF6 GF7 Avg. 

                  

1. Fills gap 4 4 3 4 4 2 4 2.8 

2. Needed by other businesses 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 2.2 

3. Tax potential 3 4 2 1 3 3 1 1.9 

4. Jobs 4 4 3 2 3 2 2 2.2 

5. Incentive use 4 3 4 4 3 3 4 2.8 

6. Customer base 4 4 4 2 3 3 3 2.6 

7. Hours 4 4 3 3 4 3 2 2.6 

8. Qualifications 5 5 4 4 4 2 3 3.0 

9. Potential viability 5 4 4 2 4 3 3 2.8 

10. Curb appeal 4 3 4 3 3 3 2 2.4 

11. Investment 3 4 3 2 3 4 2 2.3 

12. Business plann 5 4 2 2 3 2 2 2.2 

13. Financial history 4 5 4 3 3 2 2 2.6 

                  

Total 52 51 43 34 43 35 33 41.6 

        
3.2 

Dollar amount of assistance psf based 
on average rating $3.75 

       Square footage 2,000 
       Total stipend $7,500 
       Monthly stipend $625 
       



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Recommendation for Retail & Restaurant Incentive Application 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Key excerpts of application. Full application available upon 

request. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The recommended $7,500 would be set aside for payment in 12 equal 

installments following each month of operations. It comes from the Growth Fund 

(generated by sales tax), specifically from the $23,812 remaining in the allocation for the 

Retail and Restaurant Incentive Program. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Some monitoring and reporting is necessary. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  The building will have an automatic door installed if this application 

and/or the storefront improvement application is approved. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Mandan Growth Fund Committee unanimously voted to 

recommend an incentive of $3.75 per square foot totaling $7,500 in assistance over the 

first 12 months of operation. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve $7,500 as an incentive for Bearscat 

Bakehouse, payable in 12 equal monthly installments following each month of operations 

in Mandan. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Recommendation for Retail & Restaurant Incentive Application 

Page 4 of 6 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Recommendation for Retail & Restaurant Incentive Application 

Page 5 of 6 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  MGF Recommendation for Retail & Restaurant Incentive Application 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider appointing a City Commissioner to a Housing 

Initiative Working Group. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Bismarck Mandan Housing Demand Analysis 

– 2030 (Analysis) has been completed and presentation made to the Bismarck and 

Mandan City Commissions. It has been suggested that Bismarck and Mandan work 

cooperatively on the goals and action steps as suggested by the Analysis. In order to 

accomplish this, the City of Bismarck has appointed Commission Guy as the point person 

for the Bismarck. We are looking to appoint a Mandan City Commissioner as the point 

person for Mandan. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   n/a 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to appoint Commissioner ___________ as the point 

person the City of Mandan in working cooperatively with City of Bismarck on the 

Bismarck Mandan Housing Action Plans. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 15, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Designate City of Mandan representative for 

working with City of Bismarck on housing action 

plans. 

 

  

New Business No. 6  



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider appointing representatives to work with City of 

Bismarck and Burleigh County on agreements related to a combined communications 

center. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  To officially appoint city representatives to work 

with Bismarck and Burleigh to move forward on agreements relative to a combined 

communications center. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   n/a 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to appoint Commissioner(s) ______________ to work 

on agreements related to a Bismarck Burleigh Mandan Combined Communications 

Center. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 15, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Designate City of Mandan representative(s) for 

working with City of Bismarck and Burleigh 

County on agreements for Combined 

Communications Center 

 

  

New Business No. 7  



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: Update Commission on the Cemetery cleanup and removal of items that are 

non-complying to the new rules and regulations and the Grounds Maintenance building status. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: On July 21, 2015 the City Commission approved the rules and 

regulation for the Cemetery as presented by the Cemetery Task Force. The new rules and regulations went 

into effect September 1, 2015, and patrons had until October 15
th

 to remove non-complying items and 

landscaping.  Many items have been removed and things are looking quite nice at the Cemetery. Patrons are 

encouraged to continue to remove wanted items even though the deadline has passed, if items have already 

been removed please contact the grounds maintenance staff to assist in locating them.  Items will be saved 

until June 1, 2016. 

 

On the 16
th

 city staff began removing, labeling and storing items that have not been attended to, once this is 

complete, landscaping issues will be addressed as long as the weather allows with the goal to have the 

Cemetery in compliance with the rules and regulations by Memorial Day next year. 

 

The Grounds Maintenance building is nearing completion, about 99% complete, only waiting on punch list 

items to be corrected or installed by the contractors and landscaping items to be completed by city staff. We 

are starting to move some things into the building.  Overall, the construction of the building went well and 

is on or slightly under budget, we don’t have the final numbers yet. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: Grounds Maintenance Building picture 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 

STAFF IMPACT:  

 

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION: None needed. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: None needed. 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 16, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Update the Commission on the Cemetery cleanup 

and the status of the Grounds Maintenance 

building. 

 

  

New Business No. 8 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 20, 2015 

Subject:  Update on the Cemetery cleanup and the status of the Grounds Maintenance 

building 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
   



Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

Staff has been reviewing the new city code and has identified additions that need to be made 

related to removal of snow and placing things in the right-of-way. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

Some language that was in the old city code was deleted as obsolete or out of place.  These 

proposed additions create new language in the appropriate new chapter of the code. 

 

Additions include: 

1. Prohibition against putting snow on a sidewalk, driveway apron, near a fire hydrant or in 

the street. 

2. Prohibition against putting things in the street unless the city has granted permission. 

3. Rules regarding wires and poles in the public right-of-way. 

4. Allowance for use of a boulevard area to store construction equipment and materials. 

5. Requirement for property owners to keep sidewalks and street gutters clean. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Staff recommends adoption of this ordinance. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to approve first consideration of Ordinance No. 1222  
 
  

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 16, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance No. 1222 making 

additions to new city code chapters 16 and 115 

related to snow removal and use of streets 

 

  

Resolutions and Ordinances No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 
Subject: Ord. 1222 snow & streets 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. 1222 

 

An Ordinance to Adopt Amendments to Chapter 16 

Nuisances and Chapter 115 Streets of the Mandan Code of 

Ordinances 

 

WHEREAS, A new city code was recently adopted, and 

 

WHEREAS, Staff has identified sections that need to be added to the new code to 

clarify certain requirements. 

  

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners 

of the City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Amendments to adopted code.  The Mandan Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended. 

 

a. A new Section 16-2-4 is added to read: 

 

Sec. 16-2-4.  Placement of snow. 
 

A property owner or a contractor hired by a property owner to remove snow from 

private property shall not place the snow on a sidewalk, driveway apron, on the paved 

portion of a street or alley or within five feet of a fire hydrant.  Snow may be placed in 

the unpaved portion of the boulevard within the public right-of-way. 
 

b. A new Section 115-3-8 is added to read: 

 

Sec. 115-3-8.  Use of streets, alleys and public rights-of-way or easements. 

 

(a) Obstructions.  No person shall re-grade or place any object in a street, alley, 

public right-of-way or public easement that restricts the public’s use of the street, alley, 

public right-of-way or public easement unless authorized to do so by the city.  No person 

shall deposit on any street, alley, public right-of-way or public easement any material, 

either solid or liquid, which may be harmful to the pavement or vegetation thereof or 

which may do injury to or render unclean any person, animal or property including oil or 

other chemicals, snow, dirt, rubbish or garbage and grass cuttings or tree limbs. 

(b) Wires and poles.  No person shall erect any pole or install any wire within the 

right-of-way of any street or alley, any public right-of-way or any public easement 

without first obtaining permission and any required permit from the city.  No person shall 

remove any wire crossing or running along any street or alley right-of-way, public right-

of-way or public easement or any pole within the right-of-way of any street or alley, any 

public right-of-way or any public easement without first obtaining permission from the 

owner of the wire or pole, notifying the city of the intended removal and obtaining any 

required permit from the city for working within the public right-of-way. 

(c) Building materials.  The unpaved boulevard area of a public right-of-way adjacent 

to a private lot where construction activity authorized by a valid current building permit 

is in progress may be used to store construction equipment and materials.  The paved 

Resolutions and Ordinances No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2015 
Subject: Ord. 1222 snow & streets 

Page 3 of 3 

portion of the public right-of-way may not be used unless written permission is granted 

by the city.  Once seasonal weather conditions prevent continuation of construction 

activity, the construction equipment and materials must be removed from the boulevard. 

(d) Sidewalks and street gutters.  It is the responsibility of every property owner to 

maintain the sidewalk and street gutter areas adjacent to their private property free and 

clear of any obstructions. 
 

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect when adopted. 

 

 

________________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners  

Attest: 

 

________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:     October 20, 2015  

Second Consideration and Final Passage:      

 
 



 

 ORDINANCE NO. 1223 
 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Portions of Subpart B Land Development 

and Public Services, Chapter 101 Administration and Planning and Chapter 105 

District Regulations (Zoning) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mandan 

Related to Definitions, Planning and Zoning Commission Powers and Duties, 

Supplementary Provisions, Incidental Uses, Use Groups and Special uses. 

 

Be it ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Sec. 101-1-3 is amended to read: 

 

Sec. 101-1-3.  Definitions. 

 

"Animal hospital or clinic" means a facility for the care and well-being of animals under the 

direct supervision of a licensed veterinarian; including, but not limited to, medical services, 

grooming, confinement or kenneling for medical purposes but excluding incinerating or 

cremating of animals or animal parts upon the premises.  

 

“Dog daycare” means a facility for the daytime care and feeding of dogs. 

 

“Kennel" means a commercial facility for the indoor boarding of pets. 

 

“Pet" means one of the following taxonomically identified animals: 

(1) Mammalian Genus species; 

(a) Canis familiaris, the domestic dog, and 

(b) Fells catus, the domestic cat; 

(2) Mammalian Families; 

(a) Leporidae, rabbits, 

(b) Muridae, gerbils, hamsters, mice and rats, and 

(c) Mustelidae, ferret;  

(3) Avian Orders; 

(a) Psittaciformes, parrots, parakeets, lories, budgerigars, and cockatiels, 

(b) Passeriformes, canaries and finches, and 

(c) CoIumbiformes, pigeons and doves; 

(4) Reptilian Groups; 

(a) Squamata, lizards and snakes; and 

(b) Testudine, turtles. 

 

"Pet grooming" means a facility for the cosmetic care and maintenance, with no overnight 

boarding, of pets. 

 

“Pet hospital or clinic” means a facility devoted to the medical care and associated services for 

the limited number of animals defined as pets as opposed to an animal hospital or clinic which 

treats all animals. 

Resolutions and Ordinances No. 2 



 

Section 2.  The heading for Sec. 101-2-5 is amended to read: Officers; duties; election of 

officers. 

 

Section 3.  Sec. 101-2-8 is amended to read: 

 

Sec. 101-2-8.  Powers and duties. 

 

(l) Length of approval or recommendation.  Planning and zoning commission approvals or 

recommendations are valid for six months.  Should the applicant or the city commission fail to 

act on the approval or recommendation within six months, the action of the planning and zoning 

commission will lapse and a new application must be submitted and all applicable fees paid. 

 

Section 4.  Sec. 105-1-2 is amended to read: 

 

Sec. 105-1-2.  Supplementary provisions. 

 

The regulations specified in this chapter shall be subject to the following supplementary 

provisions and interpretations. 

 

(1) Structures excluded from height limits.  A building height limit set forth in this chapter 

shall not apply to belfries, chimneys, domes, flagpoles, flues, monuments, cupolas, 

broadcast and communication towers, spires, tanks, water towers or similar structures, or 

to bulkheads, elevators, water tanks or similar roof structures and mechanical 

appurtenances. No such structure located on a roof shall have a total area greater than 25 

percent of the roof area of the building; nor shall such structure be used for any 

residential purpose or any commercial or industrial purpose other than a use incidental to 

the main use of the building.  No such structure shall be located closer to the lot line than 

a distance greater than 110% of the height of the structure above ground level. 

 

(2) Projections into yards. Steps, stairways, terraces and un-roofed porches or decks may 

extend into any minimum front or rear yard not more than six feet and into any minimum 

side yard not more than four feet, provided, however, that the floor thereof is no higher 

than that of the entrance to the building.  Chimneys may extend into any minimum yard 

not more than two feet.  No such feature shall extend closer than three feet to a lot line. 

 

(3) Existing front yard depth. When the majority of lots in a block has, prior to the enactment 

of this chapter, been lawfully occupied with buildings having a greater front yard depth 

than required by these regulations, no building hereafter erected or altered shall have less 

front yard depth than the average depth of said existing front yards. This regulation shall 

apply also to the side yard, adjacent to a street, of a corner lot, but shall not be construed 

as to reduce the buildable width of a corner lot to less than 24 feet. No portion of any 

alley shall be considered a part of any yard. 

 



(4) Fences and walls. The building line and yard requirements of these regulations shall not 

apply to retaining walls or other walls or fences.  Walls and fences must meet the 

following criteria: 

a. Fence on corner lot.  No wall or fence shall extend more than 3 feet above the top of 

curb within the areas identified herein in order to provide a clear sight triangle for 

drivers entering an intersection. 

1. For each leg of an intersection that is uncontrolled, the clear sight triangle shall 

begin 25 feet back from the property corner measured along the property line. 

3. For each leg of an intersection that is stop sign controlled, the clear sight triangle 

shall begin at a point 10 feet behind the stop sign or 20 feet from the adjoining 

street curb line, whichever is less, as measured from each edge of the travel lane. 

4. For each leg of a traffic light controlled intersection, the clear sight triangle shall 

begin at a point 10 feet behind the stop bar or 15 feet from the intersecting street 

curb line, whichever is less, as measured from each edge of the travel lane. 

b. Retaining wall.  Retaining walls greater than 4 feet in height may not be placed closer 

than 3 feet to a property line unless there is a recorded joint use and maintenance 

agreement for the properties on each side of the retaining wall.  Retaining walls 

greater than 4 feet in height, whether monolithic or terraced, must be designed by a 

registered engineer. 

c. Fence height.  Unless specified otherwise elsewhere in this code, fences in residential 

districts shall not exceed 6 feet in height and fences in other than residential districts 

shall not exceed 8 feet in height. 

d. Fence material.  Corrugated or sheet metal shall not be used for fencing in residential 

districts.  Wooden fences shall be constructed with treated lumber or painted.  The 

use of barbed or razor wire is limited to security fencing around commercial, 

industrial, governmental or utility facilities.  Use of an electrified fence is not 

permitted within city limits. 

 

(5) Accessory buildings. 

a. Location. 

1. In multi-family, commercial, industrial and agricultural districts, location of 

accessory buildings shall conform to the requirements for principal buildings. 

2. In R7, R3.2, RH and RMH residential districts, accessory buildings shall be 

located in the rear yard and shall be not less than three feet from a rear or side lot 

line or less than five feet from an alley line. In the case of a corner lot, accessory 

buildings, other than a detached garage, shall be located along the rear half of the 

adjoining residential lot’s side lot line.  A detached garage on a corner lot must be 

set back 25 feet from the side street property line or a distance equal to the 

setback of the principal building on the adjoining residential lot, whichever 

distance is greater. 

3. Accessory buildings containing a garage door that faces an alley must be set back 

at least 10 feet from the alley in order to accommodate the turning radius of a 

vehicle.  When the property has no existing parking spaces other than the area for 

the proposed accessory building or has more than one dwelling unit, the minimum 

setback for an accessory building containing a garage door facing the alley must 



be 22 feet in order to allow space for parking of a vehicle in front of the garage 

door. 

b. Use.  Other than where zoning allows more than one dwelling unit on a lot or where a 

dwelling unit is permitted on a commercial or industrial zoned property, no accessory 

building may be used for dwelling purposes. 

c. Structures included.  Any structure, whether open or closed in, that is not part of a 

principal building.  A garage having any part of its wall in common with a dwelling 

or being attached to a dwelling by a breezeway or roofed passageway up to 6 feet 

long shall be considered a part of a principal buildings. 

d. Number.  For residential lots up to 10,000 square feet, two accessory buildings are 

allowed.  For residential lots greater than 10,000 square feet up to 20,000 square feet, 

three accessory buildings are allowed.  For residential lots exceeding 20,000 square 

feet, four accessory buildings are allowed. 

e. Surface.  Except for storage sheds not exceeding 120 square feet, no accessory 

building shall have an outer surface of corrugated or sheet metal. 

f. Timing.  Construction of the principal structure must have commenced before 

construction of an accessory structure may proceed. 

g. Size.  For R7, R3.2, RH and RMH districts, the total square footage of all accessory 

buildings may not exceed 10% of the lot area and the maximum size of any accessory 

building shall be no greater than 75% the size of the primary structure on the lot.  For 

RM, CA and CB districts, the total square footage of all accessory buildings may not 

exceed 20% of the lot area. 

h. Structure coverage.  The total area of all structures on the lot may not exceed the 

maximum structure coverage established for the zone in which the lot is located. 

i. Height.  The maximum height of an accessory building is 16 feet to the midspan of 

the roof system or 25 feet to the peak of the roof, whichever is less.  The maximum 

wall height is 10 feet. 

j. Water and sewer.  Any accessory building that is connected to water and sewer must 

have a frost protected foundation. 

k. Pole structures.  Pole structures are not permitted in R7, R3.2, RH, RM, RMH, CA 

and CB districts. 

l. Portable storage containers.  Portable storage containers may not be used as an 

accessory building on a residentially zoned property.  Portable storage containers are 

to be counted when computing allowable lot coverage. 

 

(6) Through lots. Any building constructed on an interior lot having frontage on two streets 

shall be located so as to comply with the regulations governing front yards on both 

streets. 

 

(7) Mixed uses. Any building containing two or more dwelling units and space designed or 

used for commercial or industrial purposes shall comply with all requirements for 

multifamily dwellings in the district in which it is located; provided, also, that no such 

building designed or used for mixed residential and other uses shall be permitted in any 

district in which multifamily dwelling is not permitted. 

 



(8) General regulations for manufactured and modular homes. Manufactured and modular 

homes that are placed on individually owned lots must meet the following standards. 

a. The home shall have no less than 1,000 square feet of floor area except where the 

zone in which it is to be located has a greater minimum square footage requirement. 

b. The home shall have no less than a 24-foot exterior width. 

c. The roof shall be pitched with a minimum vertical rise of 2.5 inches for each 12 

inches of horizontal run. 

d. The home shall have a non-reflective roofing material. 

e. All transporting apparatus including wheels, axles, transporting lights or towing hitch 

must be removed. 

f. The home shall be located and installed or built according to the same standards for 

foundation system, permanent utility connections and setback which would apply to a 

site-built, single-family dwelling on the same lot. 

g. The design, location and appearance of the home must be in harmony with existing 

adjacent properties, structures and locations. 

h. Any such home which, according to its title document, was manufactured prior to the 

year during which it is to be sited upon its permanent foundation shall be subject to 

the provisions of chapter 111, article 10 moving of vehicles. 

i. Nothing in this subsection shall be deemed to supersede any valid restrictive 

covenants of record. 

 

(9) Use of tents.  Tents are not permitted, except in a developed camp ground, manufactured 

home or travel trailer park or in the back yard of a developed residential lot with a 

permanent residential structure. 

 

(10) Use of RV as residence.  Other than in a developed mobile home or RV park, an RV 

or similar movable dwelling unit may not be used as a permanent dwelling unit on a lot.  

Temporary use for a limited time by a family member or visitor who does not pay rent is 

permitted.  Temporary use while building a permanent structure on the property is 

regulated elsewhere in this code. 

 

Section 5.  Sec. 105-1-3 is amended to read: 

 

Sec. 105-1-3. Incidental uses. 

 

The uses of land and buildings permitted in the several districts established by this chapter 

are designed by listing the principal uses permitted. In addition to such principal uses, it is the 

intent of this chapter and this section to permit, in each district, those uses customarily incidental 

to any principal use permitted in the district. Such permitted incidental uses are specifically listed 

as follows, and any listed use is permitted on the same lot with the principal use to which it is 

incidental: 

 

(1) Accessory uses. 

a. Dwellings. 

1. Private garage used for the storage of non-commercial vehicles, commercial 

vehicles with a rated capacity less than 2.5 tons and personal property. 



2. One commercial vehicle having a rated capacity of 2.5 tons or less stored in the 

open on the lot. 

3. Private greenhouse or vegetable, fruit or flower garden from which no products 

are sold or offered for sale. 

4. Children's playhouse and playground equipment. 

5. Shed or other accessory building for storage of equipment used in grounds or 

building maintenance or home occupation. 

6. Pets as defined in chapter 101 of this code. 

7. Private swimming pool and bath house. 

8. Statuary, trellises, barbecue stoves, fireplaces or similar features. 

b. Church. 

1. Parish house, together with any use accessory to a dwelling as listed in subsection 

(1)a of this section. 

2. Religious education building. 

3. Bulletin board not to exceed 20 square feet in area. 

c. Health group. 

1. Accessory buildings containing residence accommodations for staff. 

2. Accessory buildings providing utility and maintenance services for the primary 

use. 

 

(2) Home occupation. 

a. Limitations. There is permitted, in a dwelling, an occupation incidental to the 

principal use as a dwelling, subject to the following limitations: 

1. No person other than a member of the immediate family occupying the dwelling 

is employed. 

2. Storage of business inventory but no stock in trade is displayed or sold upon the 

premises. 

3. No alteration of the principal building that changes the character thereof as a 

dwelling. 

4. No illuminated sign is used, and no sign other than one giving the name and 

occupation, and not more than one square foot in area, is displayed. 

5. No more area than 25 percent of the ground floor area of the primary building, 

whether located in the primary building or an accessory building, is devoted to the 

home occupation. 

b. Customary home occupations. The following are declared to be customary home 

occupations. 

1. Dressmaker, seamstress or tailor. 

2. Music teacher or dance instructor. 

3. Artist, sculptor or author. 

4. Home office. 

5. Dog daycare limited to a maximum of four dogs in the dwelling at any one time, 

including dogs owned by the residents of the dwelling. 

6. Overnight boarding of one dog or one cat in addition to any animals owned by the 

residents of the dwelling. 

7. Consulting and event planning services. 



8. The letting for hire of not more than two rooms for residential purposes to not 

more than four persons. 

9. Pet grooming of no more than two animals at one time. 

10. Daycare up to 12 children. 

 

Section 6.  Sec. 105-1-4 is amended to read: 

 

Sec. 105-1-4. Use groups. 

 

(a) Decision matrix.  In order to carry out the purposes of this chapter, certain uses having 

similar characteristics are classified together as use groups. In any district in which a use group is 

permitted, it is the intent of this chapter to permit any particular member of that use group to 

locate within that district. The uses listed are examples of uses that fit the category.  Not every 

possible use is listed.  Should an application for a use that, in the opinion of the city planner, is 

not listed within a use group, the city planner shall evaluate the proposed use applying the 

criteria and following the procedure listed below. 

(1) Criteria. 

a. The actual or projected characteristics of the specific use in relationship to the stated 

characteristics of the various use groups. 

b. The amount of site area, floor space and equipment required for the use. 

c. The frequency and type of sales activity generated by the use. 

d. The nature of the customer interaction generated by the use, i.e. on site, remote 

access, daily or infrequent. 

e. The number of employees required per shift for the use. 

f. The hours of operation. 

g. The building site arrangement and access requirements for the use. 

h. The types of vehicles or equipment used in association with the use. 

i. The number of vehicle trips generated by the use per day of the week over the course 

of a week, month and year. 

j. The means by which the use advertises itself. 

k. Whether the use is likely to be located independent of other uses on the site or 

established in a shared use environment. 

(2) Procedure.  The city planner shall issue a written opinion as to the use’s appropriate 

designation.  The city planner’s decision shall be given to the applicant and posted on the 

city web site.  The decision may be appealed to the Commission, either by the applicant 

or an adjoining property owner, within 15 days of posting of the decision.  If the city 

planner determines that the proposed use does not fit within any use group or zoning 

district, a request shall be forwarded to the Commission for review and recommendation 

as to the disposition of the request for approval of the specific use. 

  

(b) Group dwelling.  A group dwelling is a building used for residential purposes. 

(1) Distinguishing characteristics of a group dwelling include: 

a. The occupants are normally unrelated; 

b. Separated cooking facilities are not provided for individuals or groups of individuals; 



c. Persons residing in the building are domiciled more or less permanently, in contrast to 

the transient characteristic of occupants of hotels, treatment facilities or bed and 

breakfast facilities; and 

d. Correctional facilities are not included. 

(2) The following uses are examples of a group dwelling: 

a. Boardinghouse or rooming house; 

b. Convent or monastery; 

c. Fraternity or sorority house; and 

d. Group home licensed by the department of human services. 

 

 (c) Retail group A.  A use in retail group A is one in which the principal activity is the retail 

sale of fresh, freshly prepared or packaged food products, merchandise and associated services 

conducted primarily within an enclosed building. 

(1) Distinguishing characteristics of uses in retail group A include: 

a. Use is dependent to some extent on the proximity of other retail and service 

establishments; 

b. Merchandise is not of such nature as to require transport to the customer’s premises in 

any vehicle larger than a pickup or small delivery truck; and 

c. No incidental manufacturing or processing is carried on in such a manner as to 

produce offensive noise, dust, odor, glare, heat or vibration perceptible or measurable 

from outside the building in which the use is located. 

(2) The following are examples of retail group A uses: 

a. Antiques, collectibles or recycled items; 

b. Appliances  and electronics rental and sales; 

c. Art, hobby or craft supplies; 

d. Camera sales and service, photo supplies or photographic studio; 

e. Jewelry, clock and watch sales, cleaning and repair; 

f. Books and other printed materials, except those regulated under article 2, chapter 12 

and article 5, chapter 105 of this code; 

g. Recorded video or music for rental or sale, except those regulated under article 2, 

chapter 12 and article 5, chapter 105 of this code; 

h. Musical instrument rental, sale and repair; 

i. Butcher shop, retail sales bakery, delicatessen, fast food, full service restaurant, 

coffee shop or other eat-in or take-out food preparation establishment;  

j. Ice cream, soda fountain or candy; 

k. Department store, variety store or specialty merchandise including sporting goods or 

exercise equipment; 

l. Drugstore; 

m. Flowers, gifts or greeting cards; 

n. Furniture and accessories including bedding, home furnishings and office equipment; 

o. Office supplies including copying or shipping services; 

p. Groceries and household items; 

q. Hardware, tools, equipment, supplies and accessories; 

r. Auto parts, supplies, accessories and outdoor activity supplies with no servicing or 

repair of vehicles; 

s. Package liquor; and 



t. Pets and pet supplies with associated grooming and dog daycare services. 

 

(d) Retail group B.  A use in retail group B is one in which the principal activity is the sale of 

merchandise, vehicles or equipment. 

(1) Retail group B is differentiated from Retail Group A as follows: 

a. Merchandise is generally larger; 

b. Land area required is generally larger; 

c. Merchandise is of such a nature as to require 50 percent or more of the space within 

the building for storage of the merchandise. 

d. Merchandise is of such a nature as to be stored or customarily displayed outside a 

fully enclosed structure; and 

e. The success of the activity is not dependent upon the proximity of uses in retail group 

A or other uses in retail group B. 

(2) The following are examples of retail group B uses: 

a. Auto, truck, motor cycle, off-road, boat, construction equipment and farm implement 

sales, service, leasing and rental; 

b. Lumber yard and related merchandise, tools and equipment sales, including incidental 

mill work; 

c. Feed, grain and farm supply sales; and 

d. Trailer, RV and manufactured home sales and service. 

 

(e) Service group A.  A use in service group A is one in which the principal activity is 

providing a service with accompanying sale of merchandise, parts or supplies. 

(1) Distinguishing characteristics of uses in Service Group A include: 

a. Dependent to some extent on the proximity of other retail and service establishments; 

and 

b. Operations are carried on in such a manner as to produce no offensive noise, dust, 

odor, glare, heat or vibration perceptible or measurable from outside the building in 

which the use is located. 

(2) The following are examples of service group A uses: 

a. Barber or beauty shop; 

b. In shop repair of carry in items; 

c. Dressmaker, milliner or tailor; 

d. Dry cleaning, laundry or Laundromat; 

e. Furniture repair or upholstering; 

f. Pet hospital or clinic; 

g. Pet grooming and dog daycare; 

h. Shoe and other leather goods repair; 

i. Private club, lodge hall, union headquarters; and 

k. Undertaking establishment, mortuary or funeral home. 

 

(f) Service group B.  A use in service group B is one in which the principal activity is 

providing a service with accompanying sale of merchandise, parts or supplies. 

(1) Service Group B uses are differentiated from Service Group A uses as follows: 

a. Its success is not dependent upon the proximity of other retail or serviceuses; 



b. Repair or service operations are such as to produce some offensive noise, dust, odor, 

glare, heat or vibration perceptible or measurable from outside the building in which 

the use is located; and 

c. The use may be conducted around the clock. 

(2) The following are examples of service group B uses: 

a. Carwash, either automatic or self-service; 

b. Auto, truck or equipment repair; 

c. Kennel; 

d. Animal hospital or clinic; 

e. Off premise advertising sign; 

f. Taxicab or bus company office with overnight vehicle parking; 

g. Commercial garage or parking lot; 

h. Self-storage units; and 

i. Mobile cleaning, repair and restoration services. 

 

(g) Office group.  A use in the office group is one in which the principal activity is the 

conduct of a commercial, governmental, financial, professional or management function. 

(1) The use is generally conducted in a lobby and office type setting mostly during normal 

weekday business hours with customer traffic throughout the day. 

(2) The following are examples of office group uses: 

a. Bank, credit union or financial services company; 

b. Commercial school including business, secretarial, dancing, music, physical culture, 

technical or trade; 

c. Governmental services; 

d. Insurance or real estate; 

e. Private company; 

f. Professional services; 

g. TV or radio station broadcast studio; and 

h. Utility company. 

 

(h) Commercial recreation group.  A use in the commercial recreation group is one in which 

the principal activity is the furnishing of recreation for a profit. 

(1) Distinguishing characteristics of uses in the Commercial Recreation Group include: 

a. Alcoholic beverages may be offered for sale for consumption on the premises; and 

b. The activity is not operated by a governmental agency. 

(2) The following are examples of commercial recreation group uses: 

a. Bowling alley; 

b. Dance hall; 

c. Pool hall, video game room or billiard parlor; 

d. Roller or ice skating rink; 

e. Sports arena; 

f. Tavern, saloon, bar; and 

g. Theater. 

(i) Wholesale group.  A use in the wholesale group is one in which the principal activity is 

the sale of merchandise to individuals and corporations for resale to the public. 

(1) Distinguishing characteristics of uses in the Wholesale Group include: 



a. The merchandise offered for sale is stored wholly within a completely enclosed 

building that may be fully climate controlled for the products being stored; 

b. No unusual fire or safety hazard is caused by the storage of the product or 

merchandise; 

c. No live animals are housed in the facility; and 

d. No junked, wrecked automobiles, secondhand equipment, other salvaged material or 

dead animals are stored on the premises. 

(2) The following are examples of wholesale group uses: 

a. Newspaper or magazine distribution; 

b. Food, beverage, alcohol and grocery; 

c. Drugs; 

d. Office products and supplies; 

e. Cleaning products and supplies; 

f. Electrical equipment and parts; 

g. Furniture, appliances and home furnishings; 

h. Paper or plastic products; 

i. Pumps, pipe and associated parts; and 

j. Vehicle parts and tires. 

 

(j) Health group.  A use in the health-medical group is one in which the principal activity is 

related to the care and medical treatment of human beings. 

(1) Facilities include anything up to and including a full service hospital with all support 

functions including emergency medical transportation. 

(2) The following are examples of health group uses: 

a. Hospital for human beings licensed under N.D.C.C. ch. 23-16; 

b. Medical clinic or urgent care facility; 

c. Nursing home licensed by the department of health under N.D.C.C. ch. 23-16; 

d. Basic care facility licensed by the department of health under N.D.C.C. ch. 23-09.3. 

e. Assisted living facility registered with the department of human services; 

f. Sanitarium or similar treatment facility licensed by the department of human services. 

 

(k) Education group.  A use in the education group is one in which the principal activity is 

the education of children or adults.  Sports activities linked to an educational entity are included. 

(1) The activity can be directed at any age group and be operated by a public, private or 

religious group. 

(2) The following are examples of education group uses: 

a. Pre-school; 

b. College or junior college; 

c. Grade school; 

d. High school or middle school; 

e. Kindergarten; 

f. Private or parochial schools offering a curriculum substantially equivalent to that 

offered by public schools; 

g. Student or faculty dormitory; 

h. Stadium, gymnasium or field house; 

i. Utility or maintenance service building; 



j. Administrative building; and 

k. Athletic field. 

 

(l) Public recreation group.  A use in the public recreation group is one in which the 

principal activity is public recreation and which is carried on by a governmental agency. 

(1) The activity may be similar to a use in the commercial recreation group.  Alcoholic 

beverages may be offered for sale for consumption on the premises. 

(2) The following are public recreation group uses: 

a. Community center or sports complex; 

b. Golf courses; 

c. Museum; 

d. Park; 

e. Playground; and 

f. Swimming pool. 

 

(m) General farming group.  A use in the general farming group is one which is customarily 

carried on in nonurban areas. It is the intent of this chapter to permit as an integral part of any 

particular use in the general farming group all customary accessory buildings for breeding and 

rearing poultry and livestock and for the storage of feed and farm crops.  On any parcel of land 

lying within the territorial jurisdiction of the city for zoning regulations the conduct of any dairy, 

fur farming or farrowing operation, poultry hatchery, poultry farming or feeding or a riding 

stable shall not be conducted within 2,640 feet of any residential district or CA or CB 

commercial district, and the raising and feeding of any livestock and horses within 2,640 feet of 

any residential district or a CA or CB commercial district shall be limited to one animal per eight 

acres of land. 

(1) Uses in the general farming group include: 

a. Dairy farming; 

b. Fur farming; 

c. Commercial greenhouse; 

d. Livestock raising or feeding; 

e. Farrowing operation; 

f. Poultry hatchery; 

g. Poultry farming or feeding; and 

h. Riding stable. 

 (n) Truck farming group.  A use in the truck farming group is an agricultural use normally 

found in suburban or rural areas. 

(1) Uses in the truck farming group include: 

a. Field crop farming; 

b. Commercial flower growing; 

c. Fruit growing; 

d. Tree, shrub or plant nursery; 

e. Truck gardening; 

f. The rearing and feeding of poultry, provided that on any parcel of land lying within 

the territorial jurisdiction of the city for zoning regulations the raising and feeding of 

poultry shall not be conducted within 660 feet of any residential district or a CA or 

CB commercial district. 



 

(o) Industrial group A.  A use in industrial group A is one involving manufacturing or the 

storage and sale of heavy building materials or equipment. 

(1) Uses must conform to the following requirements: 

a. There is no unusual fire, explosion or safety hazard; 

b. There is no production of noise at any boundary of this district in which such use is 

located in excess of the average intensity of street and traffic noise at that point; 

c. There is no emission of smoke in excess of any density described as No. 1 as 

measured by a standard Ringlemann Chart as prepared by the United States Bureau of 

Mines; provided, however, that smoke of a density not in excess of No. 2 on a 

Ringlemann Chart will be permitted for a period not in excess of four minutes in any 

30-minute period; 

d. There is no emission of dust, dirt, or toxic or offensive odors or gas; and 

e. There is no production of heat or glare perceptible from any lot line of the premises 

on which the use is located. 

(2) Uses in industrial group A include : 

a. Manufacture, compounding, processing, packaging, treatment, or assembly of the 

following materials and products, but excluding the use in any operation of a punch 

press over 20 tons rated capacity, a drop hammer, or an automatic screw machine, 

1. Bakery goods, candy, cosmetics, dairy products, drugs, perfumes, 

pharmaceuticals, and food products, except fish and meat products, sauerkraut, 

vinegar, yeast and the rendering or refining of fats and oils, 

2. Products from the previously prepared materials: bone, cellophane, canvas, cloth, 

cork, feathers, felt, fiber, precious metals or stones, fur, glass, hair, horn, leather, 

paper, plastics, shell, textiles, wood, excluding planing mills, and yarns, 

3. Pottery and other ceramic products, using only previously pulverized clay, and 

kilns fired only by electricity or gas, 

4. Electric and neon signs, outdoor advertising signs, commercial advertising 

structures and light sheet metal products, including heating and ventilating ducts 

and equipment, cornices, eaves and similar products, 

5. Musical instruments, toys, novelties and rubber and metal stamps, 

6. Blacksmith shop and machine shop, 

7. Laundry, cleaning and dyeing works and carpet and rug cleaning, 

8. Ice manufacturing plant and soft-drink bottling plant, and 

9. Assembly of electric appliances, electronic instruments and devices, including the 

manufacture of small parts; 

b. Experimental laboratories; 

c. The following uses, when conducted wholly within a completely enclosed building, 

or within an area enclosed on all sides with a solid wall, compact hedge or uniformly 

painted board fence, not less than six feet in height, 

1. Building material sales yard, including the sale of rock, sand, gravel and the like 

as an incidental part of the principal use, but excluding concrete mixing, 

2. Contractor's equipment storage yard or plant or rental of equipment commonly 

used by contractors, 

3. Feed and fuel yard, 

4. Public utility service yard or electrical receiving or transforming station, and 



5. Pipe yard or storage, sale or rental of oil and gas well-drilling equipment. 

 

(p) Industrial group B. A use in industrial group B is one involving manufacturing or the 

storage, sale of products and material and in which the operations create a greater degree of 

hazard or more annoyance than the operations of uses in industrial group A. 

(1) Uses in industrial group B must conform to the following requirements: 

a. The design and the operation of the building, and design and use of the premises, 

fully comply with all special requirements established by this article; 

b. There is no emission of smoke in excess of a density described as No. 2 as measured 

by a standard Ringlemann Chart as prepared by the United States Bureau of Mines; 

provided, however, that smoke of a density not in excess of No. 3 on a Ringlemann 

Chart will be permitted for a period not in excess of four minutes in any 30-minute 

period; 

c. There is no emission of toxic gases or fumes; and 

d. There is no production of heat or glare perceptible from any lot line of the premises 

on which the use is located. 

(2) Uses in industrial group B include: 

a. Any use listed in industrial group A and involving the use of punch press over 20 tons 

rated capacity, a drop hammer, or an automatic screw machine, provided that all other 

requirements for industrial group B uses are complied with; 

b. Any other use listed under industrial group A which cannot comply with the 

requirements of an industrial group A use, provided that all requirements for an 

industrial group B use are complied with; and 

c. Manufacture, compounding, processing, refining and treatment of the following 

material and products, 

1. Acetylene, 

2. Alcohol, 

3. Asphalt, 

4. Brick, tile or terracotta, 

5. Concrete products or mixing, 

6. Electric steam power plant, 

7. Lampblack, 

8. Oilcloth or linoleum, 

9. Paint, shellac, turpentine, lacquer or varnish, 

10. Paper or pulp, 

11. Petroleum products, 

12. Plastics, 

13. Beer, whiskey or alcoholic beverages, 

14. Stove or shoe polish, and 

15. Tar or tar products; 

d. Junkyard, provided that all operations are conducted wholly within an enclosed 

building or within an area enclosed on all sides with a solid wall, compact evergreen 

hedge or uniformly painted fence, not less than six feet in height; provided, further, 

that there shall be no burning of wrecked automobiles or other products except within 

a furnace or incinerator approved by the city engineer of the city; 



e. Any of the following uses, provided that it shall be located not closer than 500 feet 

from any zone in which it is prohibited, 

1. Cement, lime, gypsum, or plaster of Paris manufacturing, 

2. Distillation of bones, 

3. Drop-forge industry, manufacturing of forging with power hammer, 

4. Fat rendering, except as an incidental use, 

5. Fertilizer manufacturing, 

6. Garbage, offal, or dead animal reduction, 

7. Gas manufacture, 

8. Petroleum refining, 

9. Smelting of tin, copper, zinc or iron ores, 

10. Soap manufacture, 

11. Stockyards or feeding pens, 

12. Slaughter and packing of animals and meat products, and 

13. Tannery or curing or storage of raw hides; 

f. Bulk storage of petroleum and petroleum products. 

 

(q) Utility service group.  A use in the utility service group is one necessary for the safe or 

efficient operation of a telecommunications, gas, water or electric, refuse, storm sewer  or 

sanitary sewage system for the benefit of the public. 

(1) The distinguishing characteristics of utility service group uses are: 

a. The structure or use is necessary for the safe or efficient operation of the utility; 

b. The utility which the structure or use serves is one available to the general public; 

c. The design and location of the premises and structure is in full compliance with all 

requirements of this section and of this chapter; 

d. The use complies with all height and yard regulations for the district in which it is 

located; 

e. Except for electrical distribution installations, wherever the lot on which the use is 

located adjoins a lot in a residential district, there is planted and maintained a 

landscaped screen planting strip no less than five feet in width adjacent to all lot 

boundaries so adjoining a lot in a residential district; 

f. Proper fencing with lot entrances shall be erected at least six feet high and maintained 

around all installations and structures in which there is any safety hazard whatsoever 

for children, provided that all structures shall be so located that such safety fence 

shall be so placed as not to encroach on any front yard required in the district in 

which the use is located; and 

g. For the proper operation of the utility, it is necessary that the proposed use be located 

on, or within a short distance of, the site on which it is proposed to be located. 

(2) The following are examples of utility service group uses: 

a. Telecommunication transmission tower; 

b. Electric transformer station; 

c. Electric transmission line; 

d. Sewage pumping station; 

e. Water pumping station; 

f. Water reservoir; 

g. Gas pressure regulator station; 



h. Solid waste recycling center; 

i. Stormwater detention facility; and 

j. Stormwater pumping station. 

 

Section 7.  Sec. 105-1-5 is amended to read: 

 

Sec. 105-1-5. Special uses. 

 

(a) Purpose. In order to carry out the purposes of this chapter, the board of city 

commissioners finds it necessary to require that certain uses, because of unusual size, safety 

hazards, infrequent occurrence, effect on surrounding area or other reasons, be reviewed by the 

planning and zoning commission prior to the board voting on whether or not to approve the use 

at a specific site. 

(b) Application submittal.  An application for a special use shall be submitted to the city 

planner.  Whenever possible, applications should be submitted electronically. 

(c) General provisions.  The uses listed in this section are conditional uses that require 

increased investigation before considering approval. 

(1) The planning and zoning commission must conduct a public hearing on such application, 

notice of the time and place of which hearing has been given in a newspaper of general 

circulation in the city at least ten days prior to the date of such hearing. 

(2) Notices must be mailed at least ten days prior to the hearing to all property owners within 

500 feet of the boundary of the proposed project. 

(3) In order to give a favorable recommendation, the planning and zoning commission must 

consider the following: 

a. The proposed use is in harmony with the purpose and intent of this chapter; 

b. The proposed use is not in conflict with the adopted comprehensive plan of the city; 

c. The proposed use will not adversely affect the health and safety of the public and the 

workers and residents in the area; 

d. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the use or development of adjacent 

properties or of the surrounding neighborhood; and 

e. The proposed use meets all appropriate regulations for the district in which it will be 

located. 

(4) The planning and zoning commission may require the submission of additional plans, 

special studies or reports during review of the application. 

(5) The planning and zoning commission may recommend special requirements for the 

proposed use.  The reasons for the special requirements must be documented. 

(6) Once the planning and zoning commission has acted, the city commission must hold a 

public hearing and then act to ratify the recommendation of the planning commission, 

modify the recommendation of the planning commission or reject the application. 

 

(d) Airports and heliports. An airport may be permitted as a special use in an A Agricultural 

District in the extraterritorial zone and a heliport may be permitted as a special use associated 

with a medical facility within the zoning jurisdiction of the city, provided that: 

(1) The area is sufficient to meet the federal requirements for the class of airport or heliport 

proposed; 



(2) There are no existing flight obstructions, such as towers, chimneys, or other tall 

structures, or natural obstructions outside the boundaries of the proposed airport or 

heliport which would fall within the approach zone to any of the proposed runways or 

landing strips of the airport or heliport; 

(3) There is sufficient distance between the end of each useable landing strip and the airport 

boundary to satisfy the requirements of the federal aviation administration or any other 

appropriate authority. In cases where air rights or easements have been acquired from the 

owners of abutting properties, in which approach zones may fall, satisfactory evidence 

thereof shall be submitted with the application; 

(4) Any building, hangar or other structure shall be at least 100 feet from any street or 

property boundary; 

(5) Adequate space for off-street parking has been provided.  A traffic study must be 

submitted to document the need for the number of spaces proposed; and 

(6) The application for authorization of an airport or heliport shall be accompanied by plans 

meeting the requirements of the FAA, other regulatory agencies and the city. 

 

(e) Cemetery. A cemetery, mausoleum, columbarium or crematory may be permitted in an 

industrial or A district as a special use, provided that: 

(1) No graves shall be located less than 100 feet distant from any property line; 

(2) There shall be a strip at least 75 feet in width adjacent to all boundaries of the cemetery 

landscaped and maintained as a green area; 

(3) In any cemetery in which there will be permitted monuments and grave markers rising 

above the surface of the ground, the green area shall include a dense evergreen hedge at 

least six feet in height; and 

(4) No public mausoleum, columbarium, crematory or cemetery chapel shall be erected 

within 200 feet of any boundary of the lot or parcel on which it is located. 

   

(f) Golf driving range or miniature golf course. A golf driving range or miniature golf 

course may be permitted in an A or industrial district as a special use, provided that: 

(1) The area within 500 feet of all boundaries of the lot is not developed in residences to a 

greater density than one family per acre; 

(2) Any flood-lights used to illuminate the premises are so directed and shielded as to 

prevent the direct lighting area from extending beyond the property boundary; 

(3) When the area within 500 feet of the property boundary is undeveloped, any approval is 

limited to one year  one year and must be renewed annually.  If residential development 

exceeding a density of one dwelling unit per acre is approved within this 500 foot area, 

the approval for this use may be withdrawn unless all property owners within the 500 

foot area sign written consents to allow the use to continue on a year to year basis. 

  

(g) Fire or emergency medical response. A facility providing fire and/or emergency medical 

response services may be permitted in any zoning district as a special use, provided that: 

(1) Ingress and egress from the street shall be so designed and constructed as to provide safe 

traffic movement.  A demand activated traffic control signal for emergency vehicle 

egress from the site may be required. 

(2) Sufficient parking shall be provided to accommodate the maximum number of personnel 

per shift plus at least 2 visitor spaces; and. 



(3) If the use is approved, landscaping, signage and design of the building exterior shall be 

reviewed and approved by the Mandan Architectural Review Commission. 

 

(h) Day care center.  A day care center is a facility providing services to more than 12 

children or any number of adults.  A day care center requires a special use approval and must 

comply with the following criteria: 

(1) The facility must receive state approval before an occupancy permit can be issued; 

(2) For a facility catering to children, each building shall provide not less than 35 square feet 

of interior play area per child; 

(3) For a facility catering to children, a fenced outdoor play area of not less than 75 square 

feet per child shall be provided that is located no closer than ten feet to an adjoining 

residential lot; 

(4) For a facility catering to adults, there shall be an outdoor lawn area and covered porch 

offering either active recreation or passive activities for groups or individuals; 

 

(5) As a minimum, onsite parking shall be provided at the ratio of one space per manager and 

employee per shift plus one space for each 12 clients; and 

(6) Drop off and pickup of clients shall be in an area off the public street that is separate from 

parking spaces. 

 

(i) Correctional facility. A correctional facility may be permitted in an industrial or A 

district as a special use, provided that: 

(1) The facility fronts on an arterial street; 

(2) There are no churches, schools or residentially developed property within 500 feet; 

(3) The primary illumination field for exterior lighting shall not extend beyond the property 

boundary; 

(4) No building shall be closer than 35 feet to any property line; and 

(5) As a minimum, onsite parking shall be provided at a ratio of one space for each employee 

per shift plus one space per four inmates. 

 

 (j) Drug or alcohol outpatient treatment or counseling facility.  A drug or alcohol outpatient 

treatment or counseling facility may be permitted as a special use in a regional commercial, 

industrial or A district and must comply with the following criteria: 

(1) The facility fronts on an arterial street; 

(2) As a minimum, onsite parking shall be provided at a ratio of one space for each employee 

per shift plus one space per two clients per hour; 

(3) Hours of operation are limited to between 6:00 AM and 8:00 PM; 

(4) The facility is no closer than 1000 feet to a school, daycare facility or residentially 

developed property; and 

(5) The facility is no closer than 500 feet to an establishment selling alcohol. 

 

Section 8.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect when adopted. 

 

 

By:______________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners  



 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________________ 

James Neubauer, City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:           October 20, 2015   

Second Consideration and Final Passage:              

 

 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 1221 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE NAMES OF CERTAIN STREETS OR 

PARTS THEREOF SITUATED WITHIN THE CITY OF MANDAN, 

MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Name of Street.  The name of the following street is hereby changed as set forth 

below, namely; 

 

1. Shoal Loop SE as platted in Lakewood 8
th

 Addition in Section 1, Township 138 North, 

Range 81 West of the City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota is hereby changed 

to 24
th

 Street SE. 

 

Section 2.  Notice.  The proper officials of the city are hereby directed to take such action as 

they may deem necessary or desirable to notify city residents of this change. 

 

       _________________________________ 

       President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

____________________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:      October 6, 2015  

Second Consideration:     October 20, 2015  

Recording Date:          

 

Res. & Ord. No. 3 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 20, 2015 

Subject:  Ordinance 1221 renaming street in Lakewood 8
th

 Addition 

Page 2 of 2 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 1204 
An Ordinance to Create and Enact Article 7 of Chapter 16 

of the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating to Graffiti 

 

Be it ordained by the Board of City Commissioners: 

 

An Ordinance to create a new Article 7 to Chapter 16 of the Mandan Code of 

Ordinances relating to graffiti is hereby enacted as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 7. GRAFFITI 

 

Sec. 16-7-1. Abatement of graffiti by property owner or city. 

 

Property or owner responsibility. It is unlawful for any person who is the owner or 

responsible party of property to permit property that is defaced with graffiti to remain 

defaced for a period of ten days from the date of written notice of the defacement. Notice 

under this article is sufficient if served upon the owner or responsible person personally 

or mailed regular mail to the last known address of the owner or responsible person or the 

last address of the owner shown on the tax rolls of the city. The notice shall contain the 

following information: 

 

(1)  The street address and legal description of the property sufficient for 

identification of the property; 

(2)  A statement that the property is a potential graffiti nuisance property with a 

concise description of the conditions leading to the finding; and 

(3)  A statement that the graffiti must be abated within ten days after written notice 

and that if the graffiti is not abated within that time the city shall cause the graffiti 

to be abated and the cost thereof shall be assessed against the non-complying real 

property. In addition, an administrative cost equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of 

the cost of abatement and a twenty-five dollar ($25.00) penalty or $100, 

whichever is greater, shall be assessed against the non-complying real property. 

 

Sec. 16-7-2. Failure to comply. 

 

(a) Upon failure, neglect or refusal to abate the graffiti during the prescribed period: 

 

(1)  The city may, by its own work forces or by contract, cause the graffiti to be 

abated and the cost thereof shall be assessed against the non-complying real 

property plus an administrative cost equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of the cost 

of abatement and a twenty-five dollar ($25.00) penalty or $100, whichever is 

greater; and 

(2)  That the assessed amount together with costs and penalties shall constitute a lien 

on the non-complying real property and will be taxed as a special assessment 

against the real property. 

 

(b)  Appeal. The owner or agent may appeal to the City Commission within ten days 

of written notice any determination that they have failed to comply with the requirements 

of any order. 

 

(c) Any person who willfully fails to comply with the provisions of this article is 

guilty of an offense. 

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 4 



 

Sec. 16-7-3. Abatement and cost recovery proceedings. 

 

(a) Annually the city shall prepare a list of all lots, tracts and parcels of real property 

within the city from which the graffiti was abated by the city and for which such charges 

and penalties have not yet been paid.  The list shall include as a minimum the following: 

(1) Name as shown by the tax rolls, common address if known; 

(2) Tax code of the property; 

(3) Legal description of the lot, tract or parcel; 

(4) Cost of the graffiti abatement for that property; 

(5) Administrative costs; and 

(6) Penalty assessed. 

 

(b) The assessment list shall be incorporated into a special assessment resolution in 

proper form which resolution shall be presented to the City Commission for 

consideration. From and after passage of the resolution, the assessments stated therein, 

together with administrative costs and penalty shall constitute a special assessment, as 

provided in NDCC §40-05-01.1, and a lien on the real property shown on the assessment 

list. A copy of the resolution after passage shall be certified to the official collecting the 

city taxes and assessments. 

 

Sec. 16-7-4. Prevention provisions. 

 

Retro-fit existing graffiti-attracting surfaces; non-residential structures. The 

following provisions may be incorporated in a graffiti eradication order: 

 

(1) At owner’s expense. Any surface of a structure on a parcel of land used for non-

residential purposes that has been defaced with graffiti more than five times in 

twelve months shall be declared a public nuisance and may be required to be 

retro-fitted, at the cost of the property owner, with features or qualities as may be 

established by the city as necessary to reduce the attractiveness of the surface for 

graffiti, or as necessary to permit more convenient or efficient abatement of 

graffiti; and 

(2)  Appeal. The owner or agent may appeal within ten days of written notice any 

determination that they are required to retro-fit the property with features or 

qualities necessary to reduce the attractiveness of the surface for graffiti or to 

permit more convenient or efficient abatement of graffiti to the City Commission. 

 

By:___________________________ 

Arlyn Van Beek, President 

Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

James Neubauer, City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:      October 6, 2015   

Second Consideration and Final Passage:   October 20, 2015  

Publication Date:      November 13, 2015  

 



ORDINANCE NO. 1220 

 
An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Chapter 10, Article 

2, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mandan 

Relating to Fireworks 

 

Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

 

Section 10-2-10 Amendments to International Fire Code of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Mandan relating to incendiary balloons and sky lanterns is 

hereby amended and re-enacted to read as follows: 

 

     Section 5601.1.13.  Fireworks.  The possession, manufacture, storage, sale, 

handling and use of fireworks are prohibited within the city limits. 

 

 Exceptions: 

 

 c. The use of fireworks for display as permitted in section 5608 is an 

exception to the prohibition of use of fireworks in the city, provided that the requirements 

of sections 5601.2.3 and 5601.2.4 are met.  The possession, use, discharge, or explosion 

of fireworks, as defined by N.D.C.C. §23-15-01, not including bottle rockets, or a balloon 

that requires fire underneath to propel the balloon, or an incendiary balloon, or an 

unmanned free floating device capable of producing  an open flame, such as, but not 

limited to, sky lanterns or celebration lanterns, is permitted between the hours of 12:00 

p.m., and 12:00 a.m. on July 2 and 3, from the hours of 12:00 p.m. on July 4 to 2:00 a.m. 

on July 5 of each year, and from the hours of 5:00 p.m. on December 31 to 1:00 a.m. on 

January 1. 

 

By:_________________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

________________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

 

First Consideration:       October 6, 2015  

Second Consideration and Final Passage:   October 20, 2015  

Publication Date:     November 13, 2015   
 

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 5 



 

RESOLUTION OF CONCURRENCE TO AWARD PROJECT SHE-1-999(025), PCN 20639 – 

I-94 BUSINESS LOOP AND MEMORIAL HIGHWAY SIGN IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 

LOW BIDDER 

 

BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, North 

Dakota, that the governing body of the City of Mandan, concurs with the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation in recommending the award of the above referenced project to the 

low bidder. 

 

 This resolution shall become effective upon the date of its adoption. 

 

Dated and adopted this 20th day of October, 2015. 

 

            _______________________________________________ 

         Arlyn Van Beek, President of the Board of City Commissioners 

 

      Attest: 

 

      __________________________ 

Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-1- 

Res. & Ord. No. 6 


	Agenda October 20, 2015
	Minutes October 6, 2015
	Bids - I-94 Business Loop and Memorial Hwy. signage improvements, Award Concurrence
	Confirmation of Special Assessments for Street Impr. D176
	Contract from NDDOT, Traffic Safety Office grant
	Replat of Lot 7, Blk. 1, Sylvester's Industrial Park Second Addn.
	Replat for Fisher's First Addn.
	Special Assessments for Weed Cutting, Sidewalks, and Health & Safety for 2015 - board doc.
	Notice of Assessments - Weeds 2015
	Notice of Assessments - Sidewalks 2015
	Notice of Assessments - Health & Safety 2015
	Assessment of Delinquent Utility Billing Accounts for 2015
	Delinquent Utility Billing Accounts for 2015
	Horse Race ND at Moscow Bar site authorization
	Request to advertise for Fire Truck Bids
	Mandan Moose No. 425 Sunday Openings
	Lukes Bar LLC dba Silver Dollar Bar Sunday Openings
	3-way Lakewood 9th Addn. Project No. 2015-17
	3-way Meadowlands Project 2015-10
	Consider amendments to Chapters 101 and 105 of City Municipal Code
	MGF Recommendation - Prairie Rose Dentists
	MGF Recommendation - Bearscat Bakehouse Storefront Impr. Appl.
	MGF Recommendation - Bearscat Bakehouse Incentive Appl.
	Bismarck Mandan Housing Action Plan Point Person
	Representative(s) for Bismarck Burleigh Co. on agreements for Combined Communications Center
	Update on Cemetery cleanup and status of Grounds Maintenance Building
	Ord. 1222 Snow removal and use of streets
	Ord. 1223 Revising Chapters 101 & 105 of City Code
	Ord. 1221 Street Name change - Lakewood 8th
	Ord. 1204 Graffiti ordinance
	Ord. 1220 Incendiary balloons, sky lanterns & Celebration lanterns
	Concur with DOT Signs Project



